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Management Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL OVERVIEW

In respect of the consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31st
December, 2012, there was a significant drop in the proceeds from
sale of the Group’s property projects in Shanghai, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) that could be recognized during the
year under review and this resulted in a noticeable decrease in the
gross profit of the Group. For the year under review, gross proceeds
from operations and gross profit of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$804.20 million (2011: HK$2,020.05 million)
and HK$352.53 million (2011: HK$1,396.68 million) respectively.
Nevertheless, owing to the reduction in the amount of sale proceeds
recognized, the related provision for land appreciation tax of the PRC
for the year under review was substantially less than that for the
corresponding year in 2011. On the other hand, the Group recorded
a net gain in securities investments held for trading of approximately
HK$44.52 million during the year 2012 (2011: net loss of
HK$247.73 million) which was mainly attributable to sale of trading
securities held by the Group.

Hence, the Group reported a consolidated profit after taxation
attributable to shareholders of the Company of approximately
HK$17.05 million (2011: HK$15.21 million) and basic earnings per
share of 1.20 HK cents (2011: 1.08 HK cents) for the year ended
31st December, 2012. However, if the changes in fair value of the
investment properties were disregarded, the Group would record a
loss before taxation of approximately HK$21.40 million for the year
2012 (2011: profit before taxation of HK$613.07 million).

DIVIDEND

To expedite the dividend payment to the shareholders of the
Company, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
declares payment of an interim dividend (instead of recommending a
final dividend) of 6.5 HK cents per share for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 (2011: 4 HK cents per share) to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 20th May, 2013 (the “Record Date”). The shareholders will
be given an option to elect to receive shares of the Company credited
as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of all or part of the interim

dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).
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The Scrip Dividend Scheme will be subject to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting listing of and
permission to deal in the new shares of the Company to be allotted
thereunder. For the purpose of determining the number of new shares
of the Company to be allotted under the Scrip Dividend Scheme, the
market value of a new share will be calculated as the average of the
closing prices per share of the Company traded on the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive trading days up to and including
the Record Date. A circular giving full details of the Scrip Dividend
Scheme, together with a form of election, will be sent to the
shareholders of the Company in due course. Dividend warrants and/
or share certificates for the scrip dividend are expected to be
despatched on Thursday, 20th June, 2013.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Group’s major operations are based in the mainland of the PRC
and property development and investment are the Group’s most
significant operating segments. Since the property projects in Tianjin
and Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) of the PRC are
in their development stage, property development and investment in
Shanghai, the PRC remained the core business and the principal
source of profit of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2012.

During the year 2012, property investment was the primary profit
contributor of the Group and this generated a segment profit of
approximately HK$257.70 million (2011: HK$192.82 million)
derived from steady recurrent rental and management income from
the investment properties of the Group as well as a gain on fair value
changes of those investment properties. However, property
development and trading segment reported a loss of approximately
HK$20.01 million during the year under review (2011: profit of
HK$915.84 million) as limited sale proceeds of properties were

recognized.

Securities trading was the secondary profit maker to the Group by
contributing a segment profit of approximately HK$43.85 million
for the year ended 31st December, 2012 (2011: loss of HK$248.19
million) which was mainly attributable to a realized gain on sale of

trading securities.
Media and entertainment segment reported a loss of approximately

HK$6.32 million (2011: HK$3.65 million) for the year under

review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The leisure activities segment recorded an operating loss of
approximately HK$18.86 million for the year ended 31st December,
2012 (2011: profit of HK$2.25 million). However, the Group shared
a profit of approximately HK$8.72 million (2011: HK$8.67 million)

from its hotel operation in 2012.

The results of the industrial operations were the worst amongst the
operating segments of the Group during the year under review and a
segment loss of approximately HK$41.12 million (2011: HK$4.13
million) was recorded for the year of 2012 for reasons explained

below.

Property Development and Investment

The Group’s property development and investment in Shanghai, the
PRC, being the principal activities of the Group, generated total
revenue of approximately HK$432.45 million and accounted for
approximately 53.8% of the gross proceeds from operations of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2012. In addition, a net
gain on fair value changes of the investment properties of the Group
of approximately HK$137.94 million was recorded at the year-end.
Tomson Riviera and Tomson Riviera Garden were the prime revenue

generators and sources of profit of the Group in 2012.

Tomson Riviera, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera is a notable high-rise residential development along
the riverfront of Lujiazui of Pudong and right opposite the Bund.
The four residential towers provide a total residential gross floor area
of approximately 117,400 square meters. According to the business
strategy of the Group, Towers A and C are earmarked for sale while

Towers B and D are for leasing.

As at 31st December, 2012, approximately 57% of the total
residential gross floor area of Towers A and C were sold and
approximately 61% of the total residential gross floor area of Towers

B and D were leased.

For the year ended 31st December, 2012, recognized revenue from
sale and leasing generated from this property amounted to
approximately HK$258.34 million and accounted for approximately
32.1% of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group. In
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addition, a gain on fair value change of Tomson Riviera of
approximately HK$115.30 million was recorded in the annual results
of the Group for the year under review according to applicable

accounting standards in respect of investment properties.

The management will continue to focus on leasing and sale of this

property in 2013.

TOMSON
RIVIERA
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TOMSON

RIVIERA GARDEN

Tomson Riviera Garden, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera Garden is a low-rise residential project of the Group
adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in Sanba River
District of Pudong and the Group holds a 70% interest in the
project. Construction of Phases 1 and 2 of the residential
development had been completed.

As at 31st December, 2012, only 4 units of detached houses of Phase
2 with aggregate saleable gross floor area of approximately 1,759
square meters remained unsold. For the year 2012, total recognized
revenue from sale and leasing generated from this property project
amounted to approximately HK$69.39 million and accounted for
approximately 8.7% of the gross proceeds from operations of the
Group.
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In August 2011, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire the
land use rights of a plot of land with a site area of approximately
18,818.1 square meters (the “Acquired Site”) in Sanba River District,
Pudong where Tomson Riviera Garden is located. The Acquired Site
was delivered to the Group and the development plan has just been
approved by the relevant PRC authorities. It is intended to develop
the Acquired Site into a low-density residential development with a
saleable gross floor area of approximately 9,400 square meters as
Phase 3 of Tomson Riviera Garden. Construction works are expected
to commence in mid-2013 and are scheduled for completion by the
end of 2014.

Miscellaneous Residential Development in Shanghai

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden have been developed in phases
around the periphery of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in
Pudong since 1996 and there are now less than 10 units available for
sale. No sale was concluded during the year ended 31st December,
2012.

Xingguo Garden is the sole residential development of the Group in
Puxi. Apart from holding less than 10 car parking space for sale, all
the residential gross floor area of the project has already been sold
out. During the year under review, an insignificant amount of
proceeds was generated from sale of car parking space and accounted
for approximately 0.1% of the gross proceeds from operations of the

Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Commercial and Industrial Buildings, Shanghai

The Group acquired office premises on the entire 72nd floor of
Shanghai World Financial Centre in Pudong in 2011. The office
premises have been re-classified as investment properties during the
year 2012.

Rental income and management fee from the said office premises and
the Group’s commercial and industrial property portfolio in Pudong,
comprising Tomson Commercial Building, Tomson International
Trade Building, Tomson Waigaoqiao Industrial Park and the
commercial podium of Tomson Business Centre, provided a steady
recurrent revenue of approximately HK$103.79 million to the Group
and accounted for approximately 12.9% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2012.
The Group also recorded a net gain on fair value changes of those
investment properties of approximately HK$22.64 million in the

annual results of the Group for the year under review.

COMMERCIAL AND
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Tomson Jingiao Garden, Shanghai

In September 2010, the Company acquired through a wholly-owned
subsidiary the land use rights of a plot of land located at Jingiao-
Zhangjiang District, Pudong with a site area of approximately
300,700 square meters (the “Tomson Portion”). As at the date of this
report, vacant possession of over 80% of the site area of the Tomson
Portion have been delivered to the Group in phases while the
deadline for delivery of the last phase has been extended to the end of
2016. The Group plans to develop the Tomson Portion into a high-

end residential development in seven phases.

Since there are other land lots intermingled with the Tomson Portion
at Jingiao-Zhangjiang District, the Company considered that it
would be to the benefit of the Group to integrate these land lots into
the master development plan of the Tomson Portion. The Group
therefore entered into a conditional agreement on 28th January,
2013, pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire the land use
rights of a plot of land with a site area of approximately 422,174.6
square meters for landscaping and sports facilities purposes and a
residential development project (the “Development Project”) at a plot
of land with a site area of approximately 28,286.2 square meters in
Jingiao-Zhangjiang District, Pudong, at a tentative total consideration
of approximately RMB1,098.16 million. The Group will participate
in the preliminary stage of the Development Project jointly with the
vendor until the completion of the transfer of the said project to the
Group upon fulfillment of the legal requirement for transfer under
PRC law. The acquisition constituted a connected transaction for the
Company under Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and this was approved by a closely allied group of
independent shareholders of the Company beneficially holding more
than 50% of the nominal value of the entire issued share capital of

the Company.

The Group intends to integrate the residential development at the
Tomson Portion with the Development Project and to name the
property project as “Tomson Jingiao Garden”. It is anticipated
construction works of the first two phases of the Tomson Portion and
the Development Project would commence in mid-2013. The total
gross floor area of these three phases will amount to over 60,000

square meters and over 100 residential units will be provided.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Phase 2 of Jinwan Plaza, Tianjin

The Group participated in the development of phase 2 of Jinwan
Plaza, which is situated in the central area of Heping District,
Tianjin, the PRC by holding a 75% equity interest in Tianjin Jinwan
Real Estate Development Co., Limited (“Jinwan Real Estate”) and a
51% equity interest in Tianjin Jinwan Property Co., Limited
(“Jinwan Property”).

Jinwan Real Estate is developing two high-rise buildings of 25 and 57
stories respectively for residential and commercial purposes with a
total gross floor area of approximately 294,900 square meters.
Construction of the substructure is under way and it is scheduled to
have the superstructure of these two buildings topped out in the third
quarter of 2013 and of 2014 respectively. The entire project is
expected to be completed in 2015.

Jinwan Property is planning to develop a high-rise building of 70
stories with a total gross floor area of approximately 209,500 square
meters after successful acquisition in June 2012 of land use rights of a
small parcel of land adjacent to the site on hand. The development
plan of the building will be revised to commercial-cum-office uses
subject to the final approval of the relevant PRC authorities.
Construction works are scheduled for commencement in the second
quarter of 2013 and it is expected that the construction will be
completed in 2016.

JINWAN PLAZA (PHASE 2)
(artist impression) 3}% i%‘ E j?% % :& (XTH)
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One Penha Hill, Macau

The Group holds a 70% interest in the development of a luxury
residential condominium at a plot of land with a site area of
approximately 2,569 square meters located at Penha Hill, within a
designated World Heritage zone of Macau, the PRC. The
development project will be named “One Penha Hill” and will consist
of 4 blocks of residential units with a club house, roof garden and car
parks with an estimated total gross floor area of approximately 22,842

square meters.

Construction of the superstructure commenced in July 2012 and is
expected to be topped out in the second quarter of 2013. The
construction works are tentatively scheduled to be completed in late
2013. Pre-sale of the project is planned for the second quarter of
2013.

ONE PENHA HILL
(artist impression) i/,ﬂ'ij ﬁ E‘Eﬁ [J_l —‘%}Fu (ETH)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hospitality and Leisure Industry
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, Shanghai

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club is situated in Pudong,
Shanghai, the PRC and generated revenue of approximately
HK$67.47 million, being approximately 8.4% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group, for the year ended 31st December,
2012. The decline in the operating results of the Club during the year
under review was mainly attributable to a significant drop in the
revenue from sale of membership debentures. As a result, the Club
reported an operating loss of approximately HK$18.86 million for
the year 2012.
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InterContinental Shanghai Pudong, Shanghai

InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel, situated in Lujiazui of
Pudong, Shanghai, the PRC, reported an average occupancy rate of
72% in 2012 during which the hotel faced intense competition in
Shanghai. Nevertheless, the Group, having a 50% interest in the
hotel, shared a profit of approximately HK$8.72 million from the
hotel operation for the year 2012.

INTERCONTINENTAL
SHANGHAI PUDONG

gl b T B O K

A7 A R T R SRR M 2 i SRV B
TR S A = — AR B 2P AE R S
72% - A TH] 5% I 7E b v T T B BB T o
SR - AHE A %I 5 2 50% fEfs - R
T — TR RZ G ST 4 1k £ 8,720,000 #
JCZ 3 ) o

i MRV IER |V T

Industrial Operations

Originally intended to complement its core business in the property
sector, the Group holds a 58% interest in an operation manufacturing
PVC pipes and fittings in Shanghai, the PRC. The manufacturing
operation accounted for approximately 4.5% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2012. Owing to the expiry of the land use rights of the factory lot,
the manufacturing operation ceased business at the end of January
2013. Due to provision for diminution in value of the accounts
receivables and fixed assets on liquidation after cessation of business,
the operation reported a loss of approximately HK$41.12 million
during the year 2012.

Tomson Group Limited 354 M4 A+
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Media and Entertainment Business

In anticipation of the potential increase in demand for leisure
activities from visitors from the mainland of the PRC and the local
population in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
(“Hong Kong”), the Group has set up its film distribution business

and participated in the production of live entertainment shows.

Gross revenue received and receivable from this segment accounted
for approximately 3.2% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations for the year 2012. Owing to costs associated with the film
distribution, a segment loss of approximately HK$6.32 million was

recorded during the year under review.

The Group released its first film in the capacity as distributor in
November 2011 and a total of eight films were screened in 2011 and
2012. It is scheduled to release around seven films in Hong Kong in
2013.

FILM
DISTRIBUTION &5 #47
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In addition, the Group has taken part in the production of live
entertainment shows, principally local pop concerts. In view of the
Group’s minority stake in such business, the revenue generated was
insignificant. The Group will continue to participate in investments

in various live performances in 2013.

LIVE
ENTERTAINMENT B33 il H

Securities Trading

The Group has invested in various listed securities in Hong Kong to
diversify its business portfolio and maximize its return on investment.
Sale proceeds from disposal of and dividend receipt of trading
securities of the Group accounted for approximately 30.1% of the
gross proceeds from operations of the Group for the year under
review. Taking into account an unrealized gain on changes in fair
value of the trading securities, the Group recorded a net gain in
securities investments held for trading of approximately HK$44.52
million for the year ended 31st December, 2012.

Tomson Group Limited 354 M4 A+
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment Holding

In addition to its own property development projects, the Group
holds a 9.8% interest in the issued capital of Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (“RHL”), a listed company in Hong Kong, and a 13.5%
interest in the registered capital of an associated company of RHL
established in the PRC. Both companies are principally engaged in
property development and investment in Shanghai, the PRC, mainly
in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park of Pudong. Dividends of approximately
HK$27.80 million were received during the year under review and an
unrealized gain on changes in fair value of the long-term securities
investments of approximately HK$11.25 million was credited to the
investment reserve of the Group as at 31st December, 2012 according

to the adopted accounting standards.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing

The Group’s capital expenditure and investments for the year ended
31st December, 2012 were funded by cash on hand and bank

borrowings.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$2,829.99 million.
During the year under review, the Group achieved a net cash inflow
of approximately HK$458.29 million from its financing activities.
After taking into account the net cash outflow of approximately
HK$209.22 million and HK$427.13 million from its operation and
investing activities respectively, the Group recorded a net cash
outflow of approximately HK$178.06 million for the year under
review (2011: HK$316.97 million). The net cash outflow was mainly
attributable to addition of properties under development, placement
in pledged bank deposits and repayment of bank loans and was partly

offset by new bank borrowings raised during the year under review.

As at 31st December, 2012, excluding receipts in advance, of the
liabilities of the Group, about 42.51% were borrowings, about
32.57% were tax payables within one year from the year end, about
16.35% were deferred tax liabilities while the balance was trade
payable and other payables and accruals. Details of trade payables and
deferred taxation are shown in Notes 29(c) and 33 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year under review on page

137 and pages 145 to 146 respectively.
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The Group’s borrowings as at 31st December, 2012 amounted to
approximately HK$4,277.79 million (2011: HK$3,345.58 million),
equivalent to 39.37% (2011: 30.85%) of the equity attributable to
owners of the Company at the same date. Additional borrowings
raised in 2012 were mainly to finance the property development
projects in Tianjin and Macau of the PRC and for working capital
purpose. The Group did not employ any financial instruments for
financing and treasury management. All of the borrowings were bank
loans under security and were subject to floating interest rates. Of
those borrowings, 38.75% were due for repayment within one year
from the end of the reporting period, 20.47% were repayable more
than one year but not exceeding two years from the end of the
reporting period, 38.34% were due for repayment more than two
years but within five years from the end of the reporting period, while
the remainder was due for repayment more than five years from end

of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had capital
commitments in relation to expenditure on properties under
development of approximately HK$2,667.31 million (2011:
HK$178.68 million) which were contracted but not provided for,
and of approximately HK$1,366.38 million (2011: Nil) which were
authorized but not contracted for. In respect of the licensed rights for
film distribution, there were capital commitments of approximately
HK$12.78 million (2011: HK$9.80 million) contracted but not
provided for and that of approximately HK$6.09 million (2011:
HKS$5.49 million) authorized but not contracted for. The Group
anticipates that these commitments will be funded from its future
operating revenue, bank borrowings and other sources of finance

where appropriate.

As at 31st December, 2012, the Group recorded a current ratio of
2.25 times (2011: 2.33 times) and a gearing ratio (total liabilities to
equity attributable to the owners of the Company) of 92.75% (2011:
82.76%). There was no significant change in current ratio while the
rise in gearing ratio was mainly due to new bank borrowings raised

during the year under review.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2012, assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$10,974.73 million (2011:
HK$9,772.09 million) were pledged to banks to secure bank loans of
the Group.

Tomson Group Limited 35 i F 45 WA #]

o E-THEF A= —H > AEE M
KA Fy4,277,790,000 % 0 ( . F — — 4
3,345,580,000 %5 70 ) - AHZE AR H 2 AN )
WE RS T A N HEALHE 2R 2 39.37% (T ——4F :
30.85%) o A [ T F — AR B B Y A
o T EEAE BB KT R M YRR
HHZ &6 Mg EE S Mg o AL R
Y T S A B T N 4 R R AT A A T AL -
JIT A 8 38 o A HE A 2 R AT B T i 7R B
HELE o TERZEME T - 38.75% ZE A A
AL FE—4F R 5 20.479% 28 A 25 0T R
AL FF— 415 H 7 T A R A 2R > 38,3490 ZH A
A 1 R R F A AR AR AR N - 8RR
RIJZE A s B AR R R LA AR fE 2 -

G IAK > AEEMA RS RDYEM L
A RIS A 55 2,667,310,000 9 T (- F ——
4F 1 178,680,000 45 0 ) Ay B FT A9 HE i R
5 > M %7 1,366,380,000 8 JG ( & — — 4 ¢
i) BOREMERITL - AREZEITRT
W2 ERTAMEN R ERREL S
12,780,000 %5 JG ( — % — — 4 : 9,800,000 #5
Jt) 3 #16,090,000% T ( = F — — 4
5,490,000 ¥#5 T0) 2 & A RS 2y C B2 HEAH R HT
) o AL MTEIALI AR 2B A - SRATIE
A H A 78 5 2 Bl AR D AT 2 S R A -

N oFE—TAEF A= —H > AEEBG
MBI LR 22505 (ZF——4 : 2334%) &
AR B L (BB A AR AR B A A RE 25 KR
A ANIEMRERR 2 LR £592.75% (& ——
A1 82.76%) o I Lb FAME M B O A E) o
AR B R TS A A AR B A
B ERAT A KT ER o

B A

RN oFE—"HFE+ A=+ —H > AR
48 {H %910,974,730,000 5 JC ( & — — 4 ¢
9,772,090,000 ¥ JC.) 2 & & O AL T 4R 4T >
PAPE By 7R 4 BERAT Bk Z B 1R



Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi and the liabilities are well covered by the assets, the
management therefore expects that the changes in value of Renminbi
will not have any adverse effect on the Group since Renminbi has
generally been perceived as having the potential to appreciate in value
relative to Hong Kong Dollar. On the other hand, all of the other
assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in either Hong
Kong Dollar or United States Dollar; hence, the Group does not

anticipate any material foreign exchange exposure.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December, 2012, the Group had a contingent liability of
US$1.16 million (2011: US$1.31 million) in respect of a provision
of a guarantee to indemnify the management company of
InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel a pro-rata share of the fund
paid for hotel renovation and system upgrading. The Board is of the
opinion that it would be unlikely for the Group to suffer any material
financial loss as a result of giving the aforesaid guarantee. Details of
the contingent liabilities are shown in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year under review on page

147.

PROSPECTS

Property development and investment will continue to be the
Group’s business focus. The Group has committed to various
property development projects in Shanghai, Tianjin and Macau of
the PRC but these projects will need to run their course before
coming to fruition. It is anticipated that Tomson Riviera and
Tomson Riviera Garden will be the principal sources of profit for the
Group in 2013. Though there have been signs of recovery of the
property market in Shanghai during the year, both the local Shanghai
and central governments of the PRC have reasserted their
determination to regulate the real estate market and have
promulgated a series of measures. There would be an inevitable
impact on the pace and volume of the property sale of the Group in
Shanghai under such market sentiment and uncertainties. It is
therefore expected that operations of the Group in the property sector
in the mainland of the PRC will still face certain challenges in 2013

and the coming year.
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In the meantime, the Group will endeavor to increase its pace in
trading and leasing of its property portfolio in both Shanghai and
Macau of the PRC in 2013.

The Group has built up its reputation as a developer of high-end
residential properties for sale and leasing. The Group anticipates that
demand for such properties should continue to increase with the

potential expansion of a high-income middle-class in the PRC.

It is the current plan of the Group to allocate a higher proportion of
its resources to this sector of the residential property market in first-
tier cities in the PRC. Investments in the Tomson Jinqiao Garden in
Pudong, Shanghai, and the Jinwan Plaza in Tianjin represent an

important step in the implementation of this strategy.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2012, the Group engaged around 1,000
employees in total in its various offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai,
Tianjin and Taiwan excluding associates and jointly controlled
entities. Total emoluments paid to staff and directors of the Group
during the year under review amounted to approximately HK$97.24
million. Remuneration and benefit packages are generally structured
with reference to both market terms and practice, as well as individual
responsibilities, performance and qualifications. Discretionary bonus
may be paid based on individual contribution. In addition, the
Company has established a share option scheme pursuant to which
directors and employees of the Group are eligible for being granted

options to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company.
Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its graticude

to the management and all the staff members of the Group for their

dedication and loyalty to the Group over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Hsu Feng
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 28th March, 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed
to maintaining good corporate governance standard and procedures
which emphasize a quality management, transparency and

accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) was revised
and renamed as the Corporate Governance Code with effect from 1st
April, 2012. The Company has applied the principles and complied
with all the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices and the Corporate Governance Code
(collectively the “Code”) during the relevant period in the year ended
31st December, 2012, except that:

(a) Madam Hsu Feng takes up both the posts of Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company. While this is a
deviation from the Code, dual role leadership provides the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) with a
strong and consistent leadership and allows for more effective
operation of the business. The Board is of the view that there is
an adequate balance of power. Responsibilities for the
Company’s daily business management are shared amongst
Madam Hsu and other members of the executive committee of
the Board. Besides, all major decisions are made in consultation
with members of the Board and appropriate committees of the
Board in accordance with the provisions of the code on internal

control of the Company;

(b)  none of the existing independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term, nevertheless, they
are subject to retirement and re-election at least once every
three years at annual general meetings of the Company
according to the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”);
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(0)

(d)

(e)

in accordance with the Articles as amended at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 1st June, 2012 (the
“2012 AGM?), any Director of the Company appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company instead of
being subject to election at the next following general meeting
of the Company as stipulated in the Code. Such arrangement
not only complies with Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules but
also streamlines the mechanism of re-election of Directors so
that both new Directors appointed by the Board (either for
filling a causal vacancy or as an additional member) and existing
Directors retiring by rotation shall be subject to re-election at
the annual general meeting for the relevant year. Furthermore,
extraordinary general meetings are reserved for considering and
approving special transactions or other corporate actions
under the Listing Rules only, thus facilitating the efficient

implementation of the Company’s strategies;

the Company has not established a nomination committee
comprising a majority of independent non-executive Directors
as stipulated in the Code. This is because when identifying
individuals of the appropriate qualification to be Board
members and when assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, it is necessary to have a thorough
understanding of the structure, business strategy and daily
operation of the Company. The participation of executive
Directors during the process was therefore indispensable.
Accordingly, the Board as a whole remains responsible for
reviewing its own structure, size and composition annually, and
also for considering the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors as well as assessing the independence of independent

non-executive Directors; and

the Company has entered into formal letters of appointment
with all the Directors of the Company except for Mr Chuang
Hsiao-Chen who, being an executive Director of the Company
as well as a director and general manager of Tomson Golf
(Shanghai) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,

has entered into a service contract with such subsidiary instead.
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THE BOARD

The Board is composed of eight members, now including five
executive Directors, Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing
Director), Mr Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman), Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles (Vice-Chairman), Mr Yeung Kam Hoi and Mr Chuang
Hsiao-Chen, and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr
Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang.
All Directors have signed service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Company which set out the key terms and conditions of
their appointment except for Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen who, as a
director and general manager of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as well, has entered into a service contract with such

subsidiary instead.

Biographical details of the Directors and relevant relationships among
them together with their respective roles in the Board and its
committees are set out in the Profile of the Directors and Officers on

pages 37 to 41.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company represent
more than one third of the Board and one of them has the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications as required by the
Listing Rules. The Company has received an annual written
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive Directors
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and when required.
Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14 days before the
regular Board meetings. All Directors are consulted whether to
include matters in the agenda. Agenda and accompanying board
papers are given to all Directors in a timely manner before the
appointed date of each regular Board meeting. Drafts and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
record respectively. During the year 2012, four regular meetings were
held by the Board. Besides, a Vice-Chairman of the Board had an
annual interchange in 2012 with the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company without the other executive Directors

present.
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The Board commits itself to acting in the best interests of the Group
and the shareholders. It is accountable to the shareholders for the
long term performance of the Group, while taking into consideration
the interests of other stakeholders. The principal functions of the
Board are to formulate strategy, to consider and approve the Group’s
major corporate matters, to monitor and control significant
operational and financial matters of the Group. The independent
non-executive Directors have contributed valuable independent views

and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results, changes of
members of the Board and its committees, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. The Board has established an executive
committee, an audit committee and a remuneration committee
(collectively the “Committees”) with clear written terms of reference
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in
sharing the Board’s responsibilities. The Committees have to report

regularly to the Board on their decisions and recommendations.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the management, who provides support to the
Board in the setting of overall strategic direction, long term objectives
and business plans. Both the Board and the management have clearly
defined authorities and responsibilities under various internal control
and check-and-balance mechanisms. The management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans adopted by the Board and
the Committees and assumes full accountability to the Board for the

operation of the Group.

According to the Code, from 1st April, 2012 onwards, all members
of the Board have been provided with monthly management updates
to keep them up to date of material developments of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects and to facilitate discharge of
their duties. The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the
Directors to seek independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary, at the Company’s expense, to assist them to perform their

duties.
The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to

indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate

activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of

corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests of the

Group. Good corporate governance is crucial to an orderly and

effective operational system, which will enhance operational

efficiencies, thereby bolstering sharcholders’ value. The Board is

responsible for performing the corporate governance functions.
During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Board has

discharged the following corporate governance duties:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance, including revising the terms of reference
of the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the
Board;

arrange seminars and briefings to the Directors, review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors, details of which are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional

Development” in this Report;

review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, including
reviewing the provisions of the code on internal control of the

Group;

develop, review and monitor code of practice for securities
transactions by the Directors and the relevant employees and

whistleblowing policy; and

review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions of

the Code and relevant disclosure in interim and annual reports.
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Executive Committee

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) was established
by the Board with specific written terms of reference in June 2005.
The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors of
the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert, Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles, Mr Yeung Kam Hoi and Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen,
and Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the Executive Committee.
The Executive Committee may convene meetings as it considers
necessary for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any matters
concerning the day-to-day management of the business of the
Company and any matters to be delegated to it by the Board from

time to time.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was
established by the Board in June 2005 with specific written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company’s website. The principal duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management’s remuneration and the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management of the Company. Mr
Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang,
being all independent non-executive Directors of the Company, and
Mr Tong Albert, an executive Director of the Company, are now
members of the Remuneration Committee while Mr Cheung Siu

Ping, Oscar acts as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

A Remuneration Committee’s meeting was held during 2012 for an
annual review of the remuneration policy and packages for all the
Directors and senior management of the Company. Details of the
emoluments paid to the Directors and senior management of the
Company for the year ended 31st December, 2012 are set out in
Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 118 and
119.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has already been set up
by the Board with specific written terms of reference. The Audit
Committee is now composed of all the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr
Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar who possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications as required under the Listing
Rules.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to
monitor integrity of the financial statements of the Company, to
review significant financial reporting judgements, to evaluate the
overall effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
frameworks of the Group, and to oversee the relationship with the
Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of reference of the

Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website.

During the year 2012, the Audit Committee held three meetings for
reviewing the interim and annual results as well as the financial
reporting matters of the Group, evaluating the internal control and
risk management system of the Group, and considering the
engagement and scope of services of the Auditor. In March 2013, the
Audit Committee held a meeting to review the annual financial

statements of the Group for 2012 and consider the re-appointment
of the Auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended the Board to approve the
Group’s financial statements and consider the re-appointment of the
Auditor at annual general meetings of the Company for 2012 and
2013. The Audit Committee concluded that the internal control
system of the Group was effective in 2012 and was satisfied with the
staff resources, qualifications and experience, and training
programmes and related budget of the Company’s accounting and

financial reporting function.
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Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of the individual Directors at general meetings, the
regular meetings of the Board and the meetings of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee held during the year ended 31st

December, 2012 is set out below:

£ % 8%

MR ESERSEE - F—4F+_H=+—H
IEFERBEITZRRRE  EHREHE
o UAHMZE B GMESZ BRIt
JiE BN HAT -

Number of meetings attended/held

O Bz a®EH
General Remuneration Audit
Meetings Board Committee ~ Committee
Name of Directors HHEH i N #EHR VMZEE #HBRZREG
Executive Directors WiTHES
Madam Hsu Feng & Mt
(Chairman of the Board and (EFHGF R
Managing Director) FHAAH) 212 414 N/ANEH  N/AREH
Mr Tong Albert Ay
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (EH il L) 2/2 4/4 /1 N/AAR# A
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles N
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) EENVEY Y, 2/2 4/4 NARBH  NAKNEH
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi S o R 22 44 NIAREM  NAREH
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen FERE A 212 414 NAARHEH  N/ANHH
Independent Non-Executive Directors  H37 JE HLf7 # 3
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RISk
(Chairman of the Audit Committee (#HELAER
and the Remuneration Committee) FZE g & 1) 212 4/4 1/1 3/3
Mr Lee Chan Fai BRI 22 414 1/1 313
Mr Sean S ] Wang EomleAt 2/2 4/4 171 3/3
Appointment and Re-election of Directors W Z R E

According to the Articles, new Directors could be elected by the
Company or appointed by the Board. Any Director so appointed by
the Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting
of the Company and the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-

election.
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The Company did not establish a nomination committee pursuant to
the code provisions of the Code and the Board is responsible for
reviewing its own structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience of its members), and identifying,
selecting and considering any appointment of its own members and
considering nomination of those retiring members for re-election by
the sharcholders in the general meetings. The Board is also
responsible for assessing the independence of the independent non-

executive Directors.

During the year under review, no new members were appointed and
at a regular board meeting which was attended by all the Directors of
the Company, all retiring Directors who offered for re-election were
nominated for re-election at the 2012 AGM.

At a regular meeting held in March 2013, the Board nominated an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, Mr Cheung
Siu Ping, Oscar who will retire by rotation at the 2013 annual general
meeting of the Company for re-election at that general meeting. Mr
Chuang Hsiao-Chen, who is an executive Director of the Company
and will retire at the 2013 annual general meeting, has informed the
Company that he will not seek re-election.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each of the new Directors of the
Company is given a comprehensive orientation package, including
the latest information of the Group, induction into their
responsibilities and duties, terms of reference of the relevant
Committees and other related regulatory requirements.

Throughout the course of their directorship, to keep them abreast of
latest development in the legislative or regulatory environment, the
Directors are regularly provided with updates and briefings on the
Listing Rules and other applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
Circulars or guidance notes issued by various regulatory authorities or
organizations, where appropriate, are given to the Directors for their
reading and reference.

In order to assist the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development, the Company encourages the Directors to
enroll in a wide range of professional development seminars and
conferences. During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the
Company has also organized in-house seminar and arranged briefings
for the Directors. In future, the Company will arrange regular
seminars or workshops for the Directors so as to help them to refresh

their knowledge and skills.
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A summary of the training received by the Directors during the
period from 1st April, 2012 (the effective date of the Corporate
Governance Code) to 31st December, 2012 is as follows:

T FE - TN — H (R EERTADZ
BB B2 H=1t—HILWH > #E
P B BRI 2R

Continuing Professional Development

Type Subject
Name of Directors HRMA % i
Madam Hsu Feng o a1+ 1,2 A B
Mr Tong Albert Y RRCIE s 1,2 A, B
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles BT EEE 1,2 AB
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi Ao BRI e 1,2 A, B
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen HEIRE B 1,2 A B
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar sRIKF-SEE 1,2 AB
Mr Lee Chan Fai ZER A 1,2 AB
Mr Sean S ] Wang ELRISEE 1,2 AB
Types: FEST
1: Attending in-house briefings/training, seminars, conference or forums 1: R R g, R R BT e R
2: Reading relevant information and updates 2: I A R e B R
Subjects: T
A: Subjects related to the businesses of the Company A: BN W 2B A B 0
B: Legal, regulatory, finance and general management updates B: IR B RS M — A B B R

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of practice regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and relevant employees (the
“Code of Practice”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of the
Company and each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Practice throughout the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a proper and effective
internal control system is maintained within the Group in order to
safeguard the shareholders” investment and the Group’s assets. The
Company has adopted a code on internal control applicable to the
Group in terms of financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions since 2005. The code on internal control
is reviewed regularly and modified pursuant to operational

requirements of the Group.

The Audit Committee has been authorized by the Board to review
the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group
regularly and a meeting was held in 2012 for that purpose. The
Board, through the review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied that
the Group has complied with all the applicable provisions of the
Group’s code on internal control throughout the year ended 31st
December, 2012 and considers that the Group’s internal control

system was effective and adequate.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the Audit
Committee, the resources, staff qualifications and experience, and
training programmes and related budget of the Company’s

accounting and financial reporting function were adequate.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for each financial period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2012, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; have made judgements and estimates that were prudent
and reasonable; and have prepared the financial statements on a going

concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to form an
independent opinion, based on the audit, on those financial
statements and their opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2012 is set out in
the independent Auditor’s report on pages 60 and 61.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the
Group by the Auditor for the year ended 31st December, 2012
amounted to approximately HK$3,474,000 and HK$19,500
respectively. The non-audit services provided during the year were

taxation services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring board
procedures are followed and board proceedings are efficiently and
effectively conducted. She is also responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully apprised of all applicable law, rules, regulations and
corporate governance developments. During the year under review,

the Company Secretary has taken relevant professional training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s
annual general meetings. In 2012, all Directors of the Company
attended the general meetings of the Company to answer questions
from the shareholders. Representatives of the Auditor also attended
the 2012 AGM to answer questions about the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2011.

In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders of
the Company and enable the Company’s shareholders to have timely
and updated information of the Group, the Company has set up its
own website at http://www.tomson.com.hk where the corporate
information, interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
business development and other information of the Company are

posted.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”) and Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

(a)

(b)

Any three shareholders of the Company holding in aggregate
not less than 5% of the paid up capital of the Company and
having rights to vote at general meetings of the Company have
the rights to ask the Board to convene an EGM by depositing a
duly signed requisition stating the business(es) to be transacted
at the EGM or other objects of the EGM at the office of the
Company at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing
On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary of the Company.

If within 21 days of deposit of a valid requisition (which has
been duly verified with the Share Registrar of the Company)
the Board does not proceed to duly convene an EGM, the

requisitionists may themselves convene an EGM.

The procedures for nomination of Directors by the shareholders
of the Company are available on the Company’s website at

htep://www.tomson.com.hk.

Procedures for Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders can direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to

the Share Registrar of the Company. To the extent such information

is publicly available, shareholders may at any time put forward

enquiries to the Board through the Company Secretary in writing by
mail to the office of the Company at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12,
15th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong

Kong or by e-mail to ir@tomson.com.hk.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

At the 2012 AGM, a special resolution was passed to amend the
Articles to, inter alia, ensure compliance with the amendments to the
Listing Rules, modify the provisions governing the retirement of
Directors and arrangements relating to election of chairman of Board
meetings and general meetings of the Company and revise the
minimum number of members who can requisition a general meeting
of the Company, details of which are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 30th April, 2012.

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribute to the well-being of the
society. During the year under review, the Group has made charitable
endowments to various international and local charitable
organizations established in Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region and the mainland of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), including World Vision Hong Kong and ORBIS, to support
their activities in the aspects of provision of relief against poverty and
disaster, education purpose, children sponsorship, health promotion

and communal welfare.

The Group started a charity programme in the PRC in 2010. It not
only provides financial assistance to 50 high school students in Gansu
Province of the PRC by sponsoring their tuition fees and living
expenses for three years but also endeavours to broaden their contact
with and exposure to other social groups by the launch of a campaign
whereby staff members of the Group have volunteered to establish

close and continuous rapport with these students.
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The Company has again participated in the “Heart to Heart Project” AN FNG R ZF— MRS T AT
organized by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups in 2012, e MR CH DEHERD - UGB T #%
to sponsor service projects proposed by volunteer groups of those AT BB A 3 TR R RS IEE > SEh
schools enrolled under the project so as to encourage youth volunteers R T IB AL € B At e gt ARt B o

to serve the community and to play their part in social development.
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Profile of the Directors and Officers
W RO SATBON B

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 62, has been a director of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) since January 1990. She was
appointed as Managing Director of the Company in December 2001
and the chairman of the executive committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) in June 2005. She was also
elected as Chairman of the Board in December 2006. She has over 10
years’ experience in film production, and in property development
and investment as well as retail industry in Taiwan. She has been
engaged in the property development, and hospitality and leisure
business in the mainland of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) in recent years.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, who are Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive Directors
of the Company. All of them are directors of E-Shares Investments
Limited (“E-Shares”). Both of Madam Hsu and Mr Tong Albert are
directors of King China Holdings Limited (“King China”) and
executive directors of a listed company in Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC (“Hong Kong”), Rivera
(Holdings) Limited (“RHL”). Madam Hsu is also the owner of
E-Shares and King China and a substantial shareholder of RHL.
E-Shares, King China and RHL are substantial sharcholders of the
Company under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).

As at 28th March, 2013, pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu together
with her parties acting in concert, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, are interested and taken to be interested in a total of
760,153,627 shares in the capital of the Company (including share

options).

In addition, Madam Hsu is the Honorary Consul of the Principality
of Monaco in Shanghai.

Mr Tong Albert, aged 30, has been appointed an executive Director
of the Company since December 2001 and a member of the executive
committee and remuneration committee of the Board since June
2005. He was also elected as Vice-Chairman of the Board in
December 2006. He has joined the Group and taken up directorships
of the subsidiaries of the Company since March 2001. He has
participated in the Group’s business development, corporate

management, property trading and securities investment for years.
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Mr Tong Albert is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the younger
brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Vice-Chairman of the Board
and executive Director of the Company. They all are directors of
E-Shares. Both of Mr Tong Albert and Madam Hsu are directors of
King China and executive directors of RHL. He is deemed to be a
substantial shareholder of RHL. E-Shares, King China and RHL are
substantial shareholders of the Company under the SFO.

Besides, as at 28th March, 2013, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong
Albert together with his parties acting in concert, Madam Hsu Feng
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, are interested and taken to be
interested in a total of 760,153,627 shares in the capital of the

Company (including share options).

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, aged 32, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the executive committee
of the Board since October 2008. He was also elected as Vice-
Chairman of the Board in December 2010. He has joined the Group
since December 2000 and has participated in property trading and
business management of the Shanghai office of the Group. Mr Tong
also acts as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He
now principally engages in property development and trading

business in the mainland of the PRC.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman
of the Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the elder
brother of Mr Tong Albert, Vice-Chairman of the Board and
executive Director of the Company. They all are directors of
E-Shares. Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is deemed to be a substantial
shareholder of RHL. E-Shares and RHL are substantial shareholders
of the Company under the SFO.

As at 28th March, 2013, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, together with his parties acting in concert, Madam Hsu Feng
and Mr Tong Albert, are interested and taken to be interested in a
total of 760,153,627 shares in the capital of the Company (including

share options).

In addition, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles has been appointed as a
member of Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s

Political Consultative Conference in January 2013.
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Mr Yeung Kam Hoi, aged 63, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the executive committee
of the Board since August 2010. He is the Chief Deputy General
Manager of the Group and has been appointed as a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company since August 2010.

Mr Yeung is an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, and a member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute. He also holds a Master of Accountancy degree
of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr Yeung has served as
the company secretary of various listed companies in Hong Kong
since 1988, and during the period from 1998 to 2010, as group
company secretary of a listed conglomerate consisting of five listed
companies. He has over 20 years’ experience in an extensive range of
corporate exercises and regulatory compliance matters of public listed

companies in Hong Kong.

Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen, aged 65, has joined the Group since May
1993 and has been appointed a Director of the Company since April
1998. He now acts as an executive Director of the Company and has
been appointed a member of the executive committee of the Board
since June 2005. Mr Chuang also acts as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. He is a director and the general
manager of Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and is engaged in the operation of
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club and the development of
Tomson Golf Villas in Pudong, Shanghai, the PRC. He has extensive
experience in sport and recreational activities and has been engaged in
management of the golf club and development of golf villas in the

mainland of the PRC in recent years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, aged 48, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board since September 2004.
He was also appointed a member of the remuneration committee of
the Board in June 2005 and then was appointed as the chairman of
this committee in April 2011.

He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is practising as a certified public accountant
in Hong Kong and is the sole proprietor of Oscar S. P. Cheung &
Co..

The annual director’s fee of Mr Cheung has been increased from
HK$117,600 to HK$129,600 with effect from 1st January, 2013,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company and
on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Board,

with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Lee Chan Fai, aged 50, has been appointed an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of each of the
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Board since
December 2005.

He graduated from The University of Hong Kong, is a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and is qualified as a
Registered Architect in Hong Kong and a First Class Registered
Architect in the mainland of the PRC. Mr Lee has acted as a director
of Marco Asia Limited and J&P Architects Limited since 1990’s. He
was a director of JSP Architects Limited during the period from 2008

to July 2012. He has extensive experience in architectural design.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Lee has been increased from
HK$117,600 to HK$129,600 with effect from 1st January, 2013,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company and
on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Board,

with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.
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Mr Sean S ] Wang, aged 49, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each of the

audit committee and remuneration committee of the Board since

April 2011.

He studied economics at Peking University and then went to the
United States of America to achieve a bachelor of science degree from
Hamline University in 1986 and his MBA degree from University of
Minnesota in 1989. He is now an executive director and the chief
financial officer of China Rongsheng Heavy Industries Group
Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr Wang has
in-depth and extensive experience in corporate management and
funds operation. He also has many years of experience in financial
operation and project management at various multinational firms
listed on the New York Stock Exchange, NASDAQ and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has held the positions of
president and chief operating officer of Hurray! Holding Limited, a
company listed on NASDAQ), and a non-executive director of China
Advanced Construction Materials Group, Inc., a company listed on
NASDAQ. During the period from June 2008 to May 2010, Mr
Wang acted as an executive director and the chief financial officer of
SOHO China Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. He was
awarded “CFO of the Year in China” in 2009.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Wang has been increased from
HK$117,600 to HK$129,600 with effect from 1st January, 2013,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company and
on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Board,

with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 46, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March 1998
and has acted as the Deputy General Manager of the Company since
August 2005.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 54, joined the Group in 1990. He was
appointed the Financial Controller of the Company in September
1999.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present its Report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2012 and the

independent Auditor’s report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group in the course of the year were
property development and investment, hospitality and leisure
business, manufacturing of PVC pipes, securities trading, investment
holding as well as operation of and investment in media and

entertainment business.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an investment
holding company and the principal activities and other particulars of
the principal subsidiaries of the Company are listed under Note 43 to

the consolidated financial statements on pages 157 to 163.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December,
2012 and the Group’s financial position as at the end thereof are set
out on pages 62 to 165. An analysis by operating segments is set out
in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to
115.

To expedite the dividend payment to shareholders of the Company,
the Board declares an interim dividend (instead of recommending a
final dividend) of 6.5 HK cents per share for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 (2011: 4 HK cents per share) to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 20th May, 2013 (the “Record Date”). Shareholders will be
given an option to elect to receive shares of HK$0.50 each in the
capital of the Company (the “Share(s)”) credited as fully paid in lieu
of cash in respect of all or part of the interim dividend (the “Scrip
Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting listing of
and permission to deal in the new Shares to be allotted thereunder.
For the purpose of determining the number of new Shares to be
allotted under the Scrip Dividend Scheme, the market value of a new

Share will be calculated as the average of the closing prices per Share
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traded on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading days up

to and including the Record Date. A circular providing full details of

the Scrip Dividend Scheme, together with a form of election, will be

sent to the shareholders of the Company in due course. Dividend

warrants and/or share certificates for the scrip dividend are expected
to be despatched on Thursday, 20th June, 2013.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed for the

following periods:

(a)

(b)

For the purpose of determining the shareholders who qualify
for the interim dividend for 2012, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 15th May, 2013
to Monday, 20th May, 2013, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to
qualify for the interim dividend, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 14th May, 2013 for

registration; and

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to be
held on Wednesday, 5th June, 2013 (the “2013 AGM”). For
the purpose of determining the shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the 2013 AGM, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 3rd June, 2013 to
Wednesday, 5th June, 2013, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2013 AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong of
the PRC, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31st May, 2013 for registration.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
contributed approximately 27.48% of the Group’s gross proceeds
from operations with the largest customer accounting for
approximately 9.99% of the Group’s gross proceeds from operations
while approximately 91.76% of the Group’s purchases were
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers with the largest
supplier accounting for approximately 72.87% of the Group’s

purchases.

None of the Directors of the Company, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% interest in the Company’s issued share capital) have any

interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Group donated
approximately HK$3,414,000 for charitable and other causes.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Group added fixed
assets amounting to approximately HK$6,939,000 (2011:
HK$344,040,000) and disposed of and wrote off fixed assets with an
aggregate net book value of approximately HK$267,000 (2011:
HK$1,536,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown in
Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
123 to 126.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, either

under development or for sale or investment purposes, is set out on

pages 167 to 173.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31st December, 2012 are set
out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements on page 144.
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No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any of its

subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

Interest expenses of approximately HK$76,895,000 (2011:
HKS$1,190,000) attributable to properties under development were
capitalized by the Group during the year.

RESERVES

The retained earnings and share premium of the Company as at
31st December, 2012 amounted to approximately HK$91,649,000
(2011: HK$227,186,000) and HK$2,153,026,000 (2011:
HK$2,141,908,000) respectively.

The Board recommends that the retained earnings of the Group as at
31st December, 2012 amounting to approximately HK$5,613,669,000
be carried forward. Other movements in reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are shown in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 66 to 68 and page 155 respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Company
repurchased a total of 1,836,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at an
aggregate consideration before expenses of approximately HK$3.78

million as follows:

A ) AT A A 2 ) A A JEE AT AT B ]
MRS AT B O AT AL TR 2 RS -

AR B A AAE 3 T 51 S R v ) 2E T AL B B
76,895,000 # JC ( — & — — 4 1 1,190,000 #
Jt) Z B EAR -

i 5

ANFRF -+ A= —HZRHE
Tt ) B I A3V A R 43 Tl 25 LAY 91,649,000 5 TG
(3 ——4F 1 227,186,000 #57T) & 2,153,026,000
W (Z&F——4F & 2,141,908,000 #70) °

HEHRERSAERNR _F—F T
=+—H A% 5,613,669,000 ¥ G 7 B i
FNGEAFE N o FEENARLEE RARNFZ
At £t e 55 8 5 0L 0 LKA 5 66 %8R 68 BT
Z AR RE RS SR B R LA 155 H AR B IS kR
B 5E 40 o

N L~ oA R bl O
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1,836,000 1% > #EEMNF

Number of Highest Lowest
shares price price Aggregate
repurchased per Share per Share price paid
Month of repurchase /I St 2 1ol fi st oy (5313 5314 CAHE R
in 2012 el gz 4 Z%H ] i i H LY
(HK$) (HKS) (HK$000)
(#7T) (7&7T) (T#7T)
February —A 1,836,000 2.09 2.00 3,777
Total A 1,836,000 3,777
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The said share repurchases were made pursuant to a general mandate
granted to the Board by the shareholders of the Company at the 2011
annual general meeting of the Company to repurchase Shares and all

of the aforesaid repurchased Shares have been duly cancelled.

The Shares were repurchased at a substantial discount to their
underlying net asset value so it would enhance the Company’s net
asset value per Share and earnings per Share and therefore benefit the
Company and those shareholders who retain their interests in the

capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries have purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities during the year under review.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, other than the aforesaid repurchases
and cancellation of 1,836,000 Shares, the Company issued and
allotted 21,066,227 new Shares at a price of HK$1.664 per Share to
the shareholders who elected to receive Shares credited as fully paid in
lieu of cash for the interim dividend of the Company for the year
ended 31st December, 2011.

All those new Shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the

then existing issued Shares.
As at 31st December, 2012, 1,435,590,034 Shares were in issue.

Deetails of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 139 and 140.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for the

preceding five financial years is set out on page 175.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and those
who were in office during the year under review are:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Yeung Kam Hoi

Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar

Mr Lee Chan Fai

Mr Sean S ] Wang

A profile of the Directors of the Company is shown on pages 37 to
41.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s Directors
during the year is set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 118 and 119.

All Directors of the Company, including the non-executive Directors,
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company
provides that at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors of the Company for the time being or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the nearest number to but not
more than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last election and shall be
eligible for re-election. In this connection, Mr Cheung Siu Ping,
Oscar and Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen will retire by rotation at the 2013
AGM. Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen has informed the Company that he
will not seek re-election while Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election.

The re-election of Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar is subject to the
shareholders” approval at the 2013 AGM and his details will be
disclosed in a circular of the Company to be despatched to the
shareholders together with the notice of the annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The Director of the Company who is proposed for re-election at the
2013 AGM does not have an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein (including interests
and short positions which they were taken to have under Section 344
of the SFO) or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as

follows:

(I) The Company:
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Shares of HK$0.50 each 5 M E 0.50 ¥ T Z ey
Number of Shares
JEe i ¥ H

Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors HEHREH il N\ BE 25 KBRS 2 R Fo b 43
Madam Hsu Feng (4) wm Mt 135,744,511 (B) Nil# 265,570,117 (C) 235,040,000 (E)
Nil#& (D) 122,498,999 (F)
1,300,000 (G)
Mr Tong Albert (4) BT RISEE 4) 51,147,893 (B) Nil 4% Nilf (D) 696,005,734 (H)
13,000,000 (1)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (4) B et (4) 45,351,106 (B) Nil & Nil% (D) 701,802,521 (H)
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(II) The Company’s associated corporations:

Notes:

GV

(1) China Boom Enterprises Limited (“China Boom”)

Shares of US$1 each

Name of Director HEBA

D) A2 ZAHBEM -

1) BESEARAGE(EE])

HEBmAE 1 %02 B
Number of shares of China Boom
RE#EZRHEE
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests

1PN &+ o e 2 Al & JLA b 23

Madam Hsu Feng (/) & Mzt

716,800 Nil 4 563,200 Nil &

(2) Tomson Entertainment Co. Limited 2 GEBRERMERAY
(“Tomson Entertainment”) (TE R4 ])
Shares of NTD10 each B B i AEL R 5 W 10 T 2 i A
Number of shares of Tomson Entertainment
T Fe B e 2 I B H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director EREH il N\ B £ KB HE £ 2y vl HE i F At 4 £
Madam Hsu Feng (K) & MLt 1,350,000 Nil 4 1,125,000 Nil 4
Madam Hsu Feng is the mother of Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles. As at (A) b L R TREE RS TR 28 -

31st December, 2012, they, being considered to be persons acting in concert, were
interested in an aggregate of 760,153,627 Shares (of which 732,853,627 Shares were issued
and 27,300,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises of share options), representing 52.95%
interests in the total issued share capital of the Company, pursuant to the SFO. If all the
outstanding share options under the share option schemes of the Company were fully

exercised, they would be interested in 51.96% of the enlarged issued share capital of the

beneficial owners.

Tomson Group Limited 354 M4 A+
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The 265,570,117 Shares were beneficially held by the following substantial sharcholders of (©) W% 45 265,570,117 R4y i B 3 A LS 7] 2 B R R
the Company: f A

Number of Shares held
Name of companies 2 vl 4 P Ity < B H
King China Holdings Limited 57 3 £ [ A BRA A 154,755,670
E-Shares Investments Limited E-Shares Investments Limited 110,814,447

265,570,117
As Madam Hsu Feng held the entire interests of King China Holdings Limited and MO b &+ B A R PE 4 A PR 2\ 7 M E-Shares
E-Shares Investments Limited, she was deemed to be interested in these Shares pursuant to Investments Limited 2 2 #FHE 25 > WO IBECGE 5 M 1 &
the SFO. R > DREAR 2 AT o 55 Iy 2 AT ©
As at 31st December, 2012, the following companies, being wholly-owned subsidiaries of (D) o FE-CEF A= —H o FHAE (WA K
Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”, a listed company in Hong Kong of the PRC), A E 2 AE — N EEAA RN A ()
beneficially held an aggregate of 173,800,000 Shares: T 1) ) A B N F) B AR AR A S 35 173,800,000 %
ety

Number of Shares held
Name of companies AEA i F A Iy < B H
Forty Enterprises Company Limited HRAEARAR 13,361,530
Shine Trip Limited Hii JE A R 160,438,470

173,800,000

Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert were directors of RHL. In addition, Madam Hsu PR A B [ SE 2R 35 Sy NI 9 o =R o b Ab - AR
Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were or were deemed to be PGE S S By > ba &+ - 8 7R ek i
substantial shareholders of RHL pursuant to the SFO. TE S S AR S 1T 2 TR
Madam Hsu Feng has entered into agreements with Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi (E) PR A - B[R] Se A s 5 e AR BT T ik
Kar Charles, to sell to each of them 117,520,000 Shares, in an aggregate of 235,040,000 T 45 55 43l 85 117,520,000 [ B 43 (A 35 235,040,000
Shares, which have been pledged by Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles in WSy ) > i F IR e A R F 3 e AR SR TR Ik
favour of Madam Hsu as a security for their performance of the duties under the aforesaid TP EERB BTSN Eal ek lE - 2 515 &
agreements. Hence Madam Hsu Feng had a security interest in these issued Shares FEW 2B o L > ARIBCGE 25 K W B &6 » 14 H
pursuant to the SFO. LR S DT 2 — TR A
Subject to the agreements as mentioned in Note (E) above, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong (F) LA 1ol R (B) B e 2 Wh ek > DA B MR ECGRE 25 K
Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were considered to be persons acting in concert E g DR R e R I S il YA )8 e % AEK 5%
pursuant to the SFO. In this connection, as at 31st December, 2012, Madam Hsu Feng B8 At Bt R -F— 4%+ _"H
was taken to be interested in a total of 122,498,999 Shares beneficially held by Mr Tong = R L LB S A A e
Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, amongst which, 26,000,000 Shares were issuable TR EE A 2645 122,498,999 BEHE G HEZG -
upon exercises of share options. 126,000,000 AR AT (1 s R AE IR 7T - 5647 o
Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner an option under the share (G) B LU HER A A2 B DR ARA RN &

option scheme of the Company established in May 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”). She was
entitled to exercise the option to subscribe for 1,300,000 Shares at a subscription price of
HK$3.644 per Share during a period of 8 years ending on 12th November, 2015.

T AR RL 2 TR I RER ) (T B ARG E )
HRZWBHE - AR EE —F—HE T —A
T E kA AR 2 T R R R ) 3,644 Ms TG 2
T I AT (o A PR A R 1,300,000 FBE A <
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Subject to the agreements as mentioned in Note (E) above, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong
Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were considered to be persons acting in concert

pursuant to the SFO.

In this connection, as at 31st December, 2012, Mr Tong Albert was not only interested in
the 117,520,000 Shares transferred from Madam Hsu Feng, but taken to be interested in a
total of 578,485,734 Shares beneficially held by Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Chi Kar

Charles, amongst which, 14,300,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises of share options.

On the other hand, as at 31st December, 2012, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was not only
interested in the 117,520,000 Shares transferred from Madam Hsu Feng, but taken to be
interested in a total of 584,282,521 Shares beneficially held by Madam Hsu Feng and Mr
Tong Albert, amongst which, 14,300,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises of share

options.

Each of Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles held in his capacity as a beneficial
owner an option under the 2002 Scheme which entitled him to subscribe for 13,000,000
Shares at a subscription price of HK$3.644 per Share during a period of 8 years ending on
12th November, 2015.

Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner, a personal interest in 716,800
shares (being 56%) in the capital of China Boom while the Company held the balance of
interest of 563,200 shares (being 44%) in the capital of China Boom through its wholly-
owned subsidiary. Madam Hsu was deemed to control the exercise of more than one-third
of voting power at general meetings of the Company, hence, she was also taken to be
interested in those shares held by the Company. In conclusion, Madam Hsu was interested
and deemed to be interested in 1,280,000 shares (being 100%) in the issued share capital
of China Boom pursuant to the SFO.

Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner, a personal interest in
1,350,000 shares (being 54%) in the capital of Tomson Entertainment while the Company
held an interest in 1,125,000 shares (being 45%) in the capital of Tomson Entertainment
through its wholly-owned subsidiary. Madam Hsu was deemed to control the exercise of
more than one-third of voting power at general meetings of the Company, hence, she was
also taken to be interested in those shares held by the Company. In conclusion, Madam
Hsu was interested and deemed to be interested in 2,475,000 shares (being 99%) in the

issued share capital of Tomson Entertainment pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company and

their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,

debentures and underlying shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations as at 31st December, 2012, which were

required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the

register referred to therein (including interests or short positions

which they were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or

which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company previously adopted a share option scheme (the “2002
Scheme”) on 29th May, 2002 which expired on 28th May, 2012. No
further options can be offered or granted under the 2002 Scheme but
the outstanding options granted under the 2002 Scheme continue to
be valid and exercisable. Following the expiry of the 2002 Scheme,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2012
Scheme”) on 1st June, 2012.

Apart from the 2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme, at no time
during the year nor at the end of the year ended 31st December,
2012 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

Major terms of the 2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to selected persons for their contribution to any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member of the

Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The participants of the 2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme include:

(i)  any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part
time) of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity,
including any executive director of any member of the Group

or any Invested Entity; or

(i) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group or any Invested

Entity; or

(iii) any adviser or consultant or customer of, or supplier of goods
or services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

or
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(iv) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of

the Group or any Invested Entity.

The 2002 Scheme has expired and no more Shares are available for
issue. Under the 2012 Scheme, the maximum number of Shares
available for issue under options which may be granted is
141,452,380, representing approximately 9.85% of the Company’s
issued share capital as at the date of this Report, unless shareholders’

approval of the Company has been obtained.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted to each participant (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the date of
grant (the “Individual Limit”). If any further grant of options to a
participant would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
to be in excess of the Individual Limit, such further grant must be
subject to sharcholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company

with such participant and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not be more than 10 years commencing

from the date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised under the share option

schemes of the Company.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the Company by

way of a consideration for the grant thereof.
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The subscription price per Share in respect of any option granted
under the share option schemes of the Company shall be such price
as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such

price will not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the option,

which must be a business day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares on the date of offer.

The 2002 Scheme has expired. The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and
effective until 31st May, 2022 subject to earlier termination by the
Company in general meeting or by the Board. After the expiry of
such valid period, no further options will be offered or granted but in
all other respects the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall remain in

full force and effect.
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Movements during the year

The carrying rights to subscribe for Shares under the 2002 Scheme
during the year ended 31st December, 2012 are shown as follows:

AT BE TR Dk It i 2 %

WEE - F—"F+_H=+—HILFEE
N ETTARFIEIE S 2 ] SRR 2
FIFN T -

Number of Shares subject to the options

WRIRHESE T 2 IR B H
Cancelled/
Exercise Balance Granted  Exercised Lapsed Balance
Date of price  Exercise asat during during during asat
Name of grantees grant perShare  period 1.1.2012 the year the year theyear  31.12.2012
20124 WEER  R2o124
G IHIH  REER REER i/ 1A3LA
KNG it T BRI Z Gtk fiih e K Z &tk
(HKS)
(#7)
Directors
#H
Madam Hsu Feng 13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007-12.11.2015 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000
fr Mt
M:r Tong Albert 13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007-12.11.2015 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000
v TR e
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles ~ 13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007-12.11.2015 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000
ZRE i
Total 27,300,000 - - - 27,300,000
am

Save as disclosed above, no other options under either the 2002
Scheme or the 2012 Scheme were outstanding at the beginning or at
the end of the year ended 31st December, 2012 and no other options
were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed at any time during the

year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
of the Company, is a director and substantial shareholder of RHL.
Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, being Vice-
Chairmen of the Board and executive Directors of the Company, are
deemed to be substantial shareholders of RHL pursuant to the SFO.
In addition, Mr Tong Albert is a director of RHL.

RHL is engaged in property development and investment in
Shanghai, the PRC, in particular, in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong, through its subsidiaries and associated company, while
property development and investment, with particular focus on
Pudong in Shanghai and Tianjin of the PRC, is one of the principal
businesses of the Group, so the business of RHL in the property
sector in Shanghai (the “Excluded Business”) may potentially

compete with the Group’s business.

In this connection, Madam Hsu, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles are considered to have interests in a business which may
compete or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than that business where the Directors
have been appointed or were appointed as directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group, pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Nevertheless, RHL is a listed company in Hong Kong of the
PRC and the Excluded Business is managed by its independent
management and administration. Besides, the Board is independent
of the board of directors and management of RHL and the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company will also be
monitoring the operation of the Group, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s

length from, the Excluded Business.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31st December,
2012.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company were entered
into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December, 2012.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group has always emphasized the importance of a highly-
effective staff management and incentive structure. Remuneration
and benefit packages are generally structured by reference to market
terms, individual responsibilities, performance and qualifications.

During the period from 1Ist January, 2012 to 29th March, 2012, the
emoluments of the executive Directors of the Company were decided
by the remuneration committee of the Board (the “Committee”) or
the full Board on the recommendation of the Committee (as the case
may be) and the fee of the non-executive Directors was fixed by the
Board under the authorization of the shareholders of the Company

and on the recommendation of the Committee.

Following the amendment of the terms of reference of the Committee
by the Board on 30th March, 2012, the emoluments of the executive
Directors were determined by the Board on the recommendation of
the Committee and the fee of the non-executive Directors of the
Company were fixed by the Board under the authorization of the
shareholders of the Company and on the recommendation of the
Committee. In addition, following the expiry of the 2002 Scheme in
May 2012, the Company has adopted the 2012 Scheme pursuant to
which the directors and employees of the Group are eligible to be
granted options to subscribe for Shares as a long-term incentive.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was registered
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Ordinance”), for all its employees in Hong Kong of the PRC. The
scheme is a defined contribution scheme effective from December
2000 and is funded by contributions from employer and employees
according to the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. If the employer
makes any voluntary contributions for the employees under the
scheme, forfeited contributions in this nature can be applied to
reduce the amount of future voluntary contributions payable by the

employer.
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On the other hand, the employees of the Group in the mainland of
the PRC are members of respective state-managed defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes operated by the local
governments. The employers and the employees are obliged to make
contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under rules of the

schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the said schemes and charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to approximately HK$8,437,000 (2011:
HK$6,834,000) and no contributions were forfeited.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2012, the following shareholders (other than
the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly or indirectly,
in 5% or more of the total issued share capital and underlying shares
of the Company and those interests were required to be recorded in

the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of substantial shareholders
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Number of Shares held
(proportion to the total issued
share capital of the Company)

P A B 8 e

(A2 w2 5B

F B 4 CEITBARZHSLIL)
Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”) JI| a4 B A BR 2 @] (T ]) (@) 173,800,000  (12.10%)
King China Holdings Limited $7 % £ B A7 R 2 7] () 154,755,670 (10.77%)
E-Shares Investments Limited (4) 110,814,447 (7.71%)

Notes:

(a) Amongst these Shares disclosed, 160,438,470 Shares were beneficially held by Shine Trip
Limited, which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Superwell Development Limited in
which RHL held its entire equity interest. Therefore, Shine Trip Limited, Superwell
Development Limited and RHL were interested or were taken to be interested in these

Shares pursuant to the SFO.

Details of the interest taken to be held by RHL under the SFO are set out in Note (D) to
the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in this

Report.
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(b) King China Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited were the beneficial
owners of these Shares respectively. They were beneficially and wholly owned by Madam
Hsu Feng in her capacity as a beneficial owner. By virtue of the SFO, their interests in the
Shares therefore constituted part of the total interests of Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong
Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles in the capital of the Company as disclosed in the
above paragraph headed “Directors” Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in this

Report.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are not
aware of any person (other than the Directors of the Company) who
had, directly or indirectly, interests or short positions in the total
issued share capital and the underlying shares of the Company and
those interests or short positions were required to be recorded in the
register kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st December,
2012.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Report,
the Company maintains a sufficient public float as prescribed by the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2012 have been audited by Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who were the Auditor of the Company for the

past three financial years.

They will retire at the conclusion of the 2013 AGM and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Tong Albert

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28th March, 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TOMSON GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tomson
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 165, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December, 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December,
2012 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong,
28th March, 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

A AR

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

2012 2011
S e
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
Mt 7t F#c T
Gross proceeds from operations KRN 35 AR 8&9 804,201 2,020,048
Revenue A 8 562,395 1,919,605
Cost of sales BB A (209,864) (522,926)
Gross profit EH 352,531 1,396,679
Net gain (loss) in investments FrERE S (E18) T8
held for trading 44515 (247,726)
Other income HAb S A 10 98,578 53,167
Other gains and losses oA 75 M 18 11 (20,506) 19,015
Selling expenses tHEEH (146,046) (250,489)
Administrative expenses 1TE A (202,341) (200,968)
Net gain on disposal and fair value changes &) 3 8 & A TH
of investment properties Sl I P A 2 Wi AR T AR 17 137,942 104,746
Finance costs il & 2 12 (151,902) (159,680)
112,771 714,744
Share of results of associates AL B A W) 2 4R (423) (1,384)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities JBENG A/ 1> 3 2 245 4,196 4,192
Profit before taxation B A Al s A1) 13 116,544 717,552
Taxation i TH 14 (108,080) (638,137)
Profit for the year AE S 8,464 79,415
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: JEALAEBE W A (fst8) anF -
Owners of the Company AAFRERFAA A 17,054 15,210
Non-controlling interests FE 122 i i SROHE 4 (8,590) 64,205
8,464 79,415
Earnings per share (HK cents) TR EL A AR 16
— Basic YN 1.20 1.08
— Diluted — AR 1.20 1.08
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

i A A 7%

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

2012 2011
S e
HK$°000 HK$000
TF#c T#T
Profit for the year 4 J3E i ) 8,464 79,415
Other comprehensive income (expenses) Hofih 4 e 25 (PR SZ)
Exchange difference arising from RN A AR 22 B S0 A5
translation of:
— jointly controlled entities — 5B ZE 8,563 47,653
— other foreign operations — HAb g 5 2EH5 10,979 446,175
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of AT B 0 (i 5 ) I
available-for-sale investments A2 s (E18) 11,250 (30,425)
Share of other comprehensive income B A Wi 2 A ) 2 A 4 T
(expense) of associates et (B =2) 159 (105)
Reclassification adjustment: TR AR
— Release from reserve on acquisition — R EFEY ERE G
upon sale of properties held for sale WL Bt AR - 3,365
Gain on revaluation of property transferred ~ #J2£ ~ W7 M i £
from property, plant and equipment to TG 2 AL AR
investment properties 9,307 -
Deferred taxation arising on revaluation of ¥ 3£ ~ U7 M sk i 13 2
property transferred from property, TG 3 2 EAG IR IERLIH
plant and equipment to investment
properties (2,327) -
Other comprehensive income for the year A TR Al A T WA AR 37,931 466,663
Total comprehensive income for the year  4F- & 42 Jij WY £ 48 %1 46,395 546,078
Total comprehensive income (expenses) JEAG 2 Es (P ) BT -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AN FIRERR TR N 46,897 435,665
Non-controlling interests IE 7 I R 2 (502) 110,413
46,395 546,078
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

5B BN DL R

At 31st December, 2012 JA = F— "4+ _H=+—H

2012 2011
L e =
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
it 7t F#c T
Non-Current Assets B E
Fixed assets EEE
— Investment properties — B E 17 6,759,985 6,230,313
— Property, plant and equipment — VI~ B Kk 18 326,924 691,030
Lease premium for land T EE A 19 63,899 69,642
Film distribution rights o HEATHRE 20 2,166 5,741
Prepayment for film distribution rights B R BT RETEAT X 21 9,555 6,488
Goodwill [k 24 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets MEAERITHE 33 238,586 223,035
Interests in associates i /N P 25 33,688 33,952
Interests in jointly controlled entities REESE ML 26 1,068,114 1,063,199
Other receivable oA R AR R 37(b) 73,099 -
Available-for-sale investments A E RS 27 118,570 107,320
Pledged bank deposits TR RT3 38 8,341 54,624
8,736,215 8,518,632
Current Assets B
Lease premium for land RV =E- 19 6,365 7,032
Properties under development B Eh Yk 22 5,134,587 4,156,741
Deposits paid for land use rights Tl R E 45T 4 23 410,452 872,724
Properties held for sale ey 2 2,865,356 2,811,320
Trade and other receivables and FEWCE 5 Bk~ HoAth
prepayments JREMSCHR K B LA O 29(a) 271,204 268,314
Investments held for trading HeERE 28 246,384 429,897
Inventories e 29(b) 14,155 27,034
Pledged bank deposits R ERAT 73K 38 1,297,682 814,628
Cash and bank balances & MERAT A5 29(d) 2,829,992 2,980,449
13,076,177 12,368,139
Current Liabilities b/ RER
Trade and other payables and accruals JEAT ' 5 Mk~ HoAth
WA ek S T4 22 T 29(c) 861,894 755,016
Receipts in advance T Uk kT8 15,886 92,262
Tax payables JRE A B T 3,277,237 3,329,196
Borrowings K 32 1,657,852 1,123,794
5,812,869 5,300,268
Net Current Assets B A A 7,263,308 7,067,871
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 48 A U B A1 15,999,523 15,586,503
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR N

At 31st December, 2012 A - F— "4+ _H=+—H

2012 2011
=
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
Mt 7t F#c Tt oc
Capital and Reserves A B il
Share capital N 30 717,795 708,180
Share premium and reserves A3 Vi A I foti 10,147,392 10,135,425
Equity attributable to owners of AN T RE S A AN REAGHE £5
the Company 10,865,187 10,843,605
Non-controlling interests T 2 ISR i 869,209 1,068,517
Total Equity HaBE 5 11,734,396 11,912,122
Non-Current Liabilities Ik i B £
Borrowings fi K 32 2,619,941 2,221,789
Deferred tax liabilities IRICFIIE B AR 33 1,645,186 1,452,592
4,265,127 3,674,381
15,999,523 15,586,503

HEAEMBEmEOR F—-=F=H +N\H&
H o g5 R o G T o

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th March, 2013.

Hsu Feng Tong Albert
i %1l
Chairman Vice-Chairman
B e
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Notes:

(a)

(9

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR R S W

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

The special reserves of the Group arose from the difference between the aggregate amount
of the then share capital and share premium account of Tomson Investment Limited, the
former holding company of the Group, and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares

issued pursuant to a scheme of arrangement in 1989.

Capital redemption reserve arose from repurchase of shares. The amounts represent the

nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

The enterprises expansion reserve is an appropriation from retained earnings in relation to
tax concession granted by the relevant government authorities. This reserve is distributable

only for the future development or expansion of that company where concession is granted.

The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from retained earnings by the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) subsidiaries of the Company. In accordance with
the Company Law of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the SSR until such reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of that subsidiary. The SSR may be converted to increase capital subject

to certain restrictions set out in the Company Law of the PRC.

Reserve on acquisition arose on acquisition of additional interest in subsidiary, being the
excess of the fair value over the carrying value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities attributable to the additional interests of the subsidiary acquired on
the date of acquisition. When the identifiable assets are revalued or disposed of, the
relevant amount of the reserve on acquisition is released to the consolidated income

statement.

Of the retained earnings of HK$5,613,669,000 (2011: HK$5,697,810,000), accumulated
losses of HK$82,000 (2011: retained earnings of HK$3,566,000) are attributable to jointly
controlled entities of the Group and accumulated losses of HK$9,305,000 (2011:
HK$8,882,000) are attributable to associates of the Group.

(e)

S T 2 R M A 2 A B B ST T 2 M R 3 B B AT
PR T > IRE B AS B 003 vk 8 MR A8 R B AC 2% | R
SN SUFARYE — Db ki B 5 4 B M o T B 26

A o R U T IR o % <R O T R SR T
B (B -

i 3 A 7 e AT I BRRT B R A T S 4R T A R
PR A o LA 2 20 R ST R BB R A 2 A WA
(39 Yl

TR BLOR AR AR 2 R 2 LR SO (7 = ) e
28 FAEAR B R B 1 AR o ARIBC AR AN A4 /]
) o AR T r B 2 T 2R B PR AR Ui U 109%
TRE B R o R A S R B MR 4 ) (R
AR 509 o 57 L 05l 4 AU AR DLBR R AR
7R IR Crp 2 N RSN B 2 73 BT i i 27 T BR i

TR 8 A T 2 BIOMIEST IRE WO A 2 2 AR T FR R
A F(EL R A T WA T WAl o T Ja 2 B 2 A E i 2 T ik
R~ AR SRR B B R« ) A R T A
I 2t R 0 i e < BRI A B 5 AT R

A B %5 1 5,613,669,000 3 IC (& ——4F : 5,697,810,000
WT0) > ASEE A A 2L IR AL B TS 4E 7 82,000 95 76 (-
T —4F AR 3,566,000 #5 TT) o 11T A% B [ 48 )
JE AL TR TR 25 9,305,000 5 UG (& ——4F 8,882,000
WIT) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Bl R

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

2012 2011
S
HK$°000 HK$000
Fi#x Tt
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BB
Profit before taxation B B T Vg 116,544 717,552
Adjustments for: KLU o
Share of results of associates JREAL B 5 ) 2 4K 423 1,384
Share of results of jointly controlled entities REAE B2 45 (4,196) (4,192)
Release from reserve on acquisition upon i R W) ZE IR 1 oS U Bt
sales of properties held for sale - 3,365
Interest on bank loans SRATEFH B 151,902 159,680
Depreciation of property, W ~ m Bt e
plant and equipment 34,662 31,772
Amortisation of lease premium for land - M FH 5 2 A A 7,166 7,099
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #J2 ~ 5 K st (B 9,496 -
Write-down of inventories 175 11,250 -
Amortisation of film distribution rights R BEAT R B 7,509 -
Impairment of film distribution rights R AT RERUE 413 -
Net allowance and written off/(recovery) SRR e s (W [E))
for bad and doubtful debts A 10,772 (229)
Net loss on disposal/write off of property, B S - RS Kk
plant and equipment Z e 1R 108 287
Net gain on disposal and fair value PG B E A TEEEE)
changes of investment properties JAE A 2 W A TR A (137,942) (104,746)
Unrealised (gain) loss on fair value changes T BUE A P B A
of investments held for trading ZAREB (i) 518 (14,717) 253,418
Interest income FLE WA (55,594) (40,908)
Dividends from available-for-sale investments ~ AJ fit A5 % & 27 iR ELU A (27,797) (3,835)
Operating cash flows before movements S S e A
in working capital A 109,999 1,020,647
Decrease in properties held for sale G E/ES %S 84,638 428,489
Increase in trade and other receivables JEWE Zy BEER ~ HoAh RIS IR 3R
and prepayments S BAS S IE S (11,091) (2,258)
Increase in deposits paid for land use rights A A HEC A AT
and related stamp duty Do KR BA ERAE B 3 A - (99,275)
Decrease (increase) in investments RpERER D (3m)
held for trading 198,230 (185,212)
Decrease in inventories &R 1,848 406
Increase in trade and other payables WA B T Rk ~ AR Ao Rk
and accruals R e B 97,503 14,527
Decrease in receipts in advance T A TE i > (77,118) (601,075)
Addition in properties under development R SERE N (401,174) (162,577)
Cash from operations REEVEEZ S 2,835 413,672
Taxes paid BT ALK (212,055) (536,366)
NET CASH USED IN RERB I 2 Bl e H
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (209,220) (122,694)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEBERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 wE - EFE—-—"Ft+_H=+—HILEF

2012 2011
R R
HKS$’000 HK$°000
F#oc T#T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REWGH
Placement of pledged bank deposits B SRR T AR K (429,767) (817,893)
Prepayment for film distribution rights R BT RETE A 3R (7,414) (6,488)
Addition in investment properties W EREY) (4,151) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment W B E - s BB (2,788) (344,040)
Advance to non-controlling shareholders BT T IF FE I AR 2 S E (290,556) -
Repayment from a non-controlling I 2 M i AR AR 2 K IH
shareholder 217,457 -
Interest received AR 55,078 40,405
Dividends from available-for-sale investments A it i B 3% & 2 i S U A 27,797 3,835
Dividend from a jointly controlled entity WA A SR B A 7,060 11,271
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEYIZE -~ s Mt 2
plant and equipment EEE e 159 80
Purchase of film distribution rights W B B T - (5,741)
Advance to an associate BT — R AR 2 IR - (1,250)
Proceeds on disposal of investment properties B 4% G2 7 T EIE - 1,169
NET CASH USED IN BE G 2 Bl a5
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (427,125) (1,118,652)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il i B
New bank loans raised HEERAT K 1,226,653 1,332,500
Repayment of bank borrowings fE IR ERAT 1 X (319,048) (135,769)
Interest paid EATFLE (225,195) (161,291)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest B AT I 2 A A 2 2 I (198,806) (92,570)
Cash dividend paid CAT B 4 B R (21,527) (34,768)
Proceeds from exercise of share options A fdi Fs FBOHE 22 Pl 15 5K - 16,270
Repurchase of shares [e1] g JE 17 (3,788) -
NET CASH FROM AVETE B E AR BT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 458,289 924,372
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERBE&EHEEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA F (178,056) (316,974)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—H—HZBE&K
AT 1ST JANUARY Be%FMEE 2,980,449 3,201,637
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE LTRSSt
RATE CHANGES 27,599 95,786
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RTHA=1+—HZH&
AT 31ST DECEMBER, KBl &%HEEH »
represented by cash and bank balances BB 4 K SRAT 45 R 2,829,992 2,980,449
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GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information of the

annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year were property development and
investment, hospitality and leisure activities, manufacturing of
PVC pipes, securities trading, investment holding as well as

investment in media and entertainment activities.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments issued by the HKICPA:

Amendments to Deferred Tax: Recovery of

HKAS 12 Underlying Assets
Amendments to Disclosure: Transfers of Financial Assets
HKEFRS 7

Tomson Group Limited 354 M4 A+

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk WA 05 W Bk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0 B R Mk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets” mainly deal with the measurement of
deferred tax for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Based on the amendments, for the purposes of
measuring deferred taxes for investment properties measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of the
investment properties are presumed to be recovered through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain
circumstances. As a result of the application of the amendments
to HKAS 12, the Directors reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, and that the presumption
set out in the amendments to HKAS 12 is rebutted. Upon the
application of the amendments to HKAS 12, the Group
continued to recognise deferred tax on changes in fair value of
investment properties on the basis that the deferred tax reflects
the tax consequences that will follow from the manner in which
the Group expects at the end of the reporting period to recover

the carrying amount of the investment properties.

The application of the above amendments and the other
amendments has no material effect on the amounts reported
and disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements

of the Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations (“new and revised
HKFRSs”) that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKEFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements®
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’

HKERS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities®
HKERS 13 Fair Value Measurement®
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
HKFRS 7 and Financial Liabilities?

Amendments to Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 and Transition Disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS11 and HKFRS12 Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance?
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities®
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits?
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements’

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income'
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January, 2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2014

A e e =

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2015

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009)” introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010)” adds requirements

for financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Under HKERS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” are subsequently measured at either
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, the Group may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held-for-trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1st January, 2015 and that the application of
HKFRS 9 in the future will affect the classification and
measurement of the Group’s available-for-sale investments.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.
Regarding the Group’s other financial assets and financial
liabilities, it is unlikely to have significant impact.

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as

revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). Key
requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 “Consolidated —
Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to
deal with complex scenarios.

3.

HEE JH 3901 w0 B 88 1 e A v IO 5
) 4)

MRIECE W B Ot MERID SR 9 9% > CRrits &
FEUERIDEE 39 5% [l T A - HEsd Kt & |
A A C MR 2 M EE > HARY
S A T ERH R - RS > R
5 7 SER X LSO 40 B 4 TR 2 H T
FRA M BB A - MR S A & R
ARG 2 BRI A K B R B 2 A S
BUE MR HAR A B S R SR S AR
FHE o T HAR GRS BUE R AR B IR
HAZ W & s ORI A FERHR © A
AR 5 B 5 YE RN D26 9 9E > A4
AT AE AN AT AR ] 2 DT 2R A A 4 T U
4t o 2 90 R A BB AP B (R 4
ERERAL) > M FUTE A IR R R e R S
A e

ERFEALES R —F—0F—H—H
B s 2 A 52 301 ] PR 5 B B R A R AR
S O RIS 9 5% - wZ Y JU A9 1 AT
REEI AL 2 ] i B BUE I B GRHE
B o SR > ASSE BORRESR LML AE Y
BN S A > EEIE G AE AR o B
TS S T At B 65 i T B 5 R A - T
% S Y QI 2 AR TR R e PL AR -

RN A B IEA B S
B BN T KRR > A
(RSB IG AN 109 - CEHB M
R AR 119~ CRF T A S i v )
B9 (RS EFI AN 27 (F
— AR AR SR T UE B ) 2R 28 5E
(CF——F8BN) - Z% L EELWE
FEHUEMAR T -

i o T 055 o 4 B D265 10 R UK e
REHERIDEE 27 98 [ A5G LS B ok |
o P25 5 B R 1 A S A U (B e
BZEE) @B 2 5E — KA
BT R | o BeAh > O B 5 ot YE U ) 56
10 BEHA £l 2 B E 2 > mAh =THTR ¢
(@ ¥ BB E T 2T )R AR E TS
< F] S [ R 2 R B ECRE A > K (o) 3 A
07 {6 T M ) S BB [ e e
T3 o 8 A 5 i i ME R 2B 10 SR 3 I 2
TEFE 5 LABE A6 M1 DL

Annual Report 2012 4F BEAE

74



75

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKEFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures” and
HK (SIC)-Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities-Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers”. HKFRS 11 deals with how a
joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control should be classified. Under HKFRS 11 joint
arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint ventures,
depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the
arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three
types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly

controlled assets and jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for
using the equity method of accounting or proportionate

consolidation.

HKEFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than

those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance

on the application of these five HKFRS:s for the first time.

The Directors anticipate that these standards will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1st January, 2013. A detailed review has
been performed by the Directors and the Directors concluded
that the application of HKFRS 10 does not have any significant
impact on amounts reported in the consolidated financial

statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKEFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad, it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by
HKEFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on st January, 2013 and that the application of the
new standard will result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology for
the statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a statement of
comprehensive income is renamed as a statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and an income statement
is renamed as a statement of profit or loss. The amendments to
HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be
grouped into two categories in the other comprehensive income
section: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
the consolidated income statement and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to the consolidated income statement
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis. The amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of
tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group for
annual period beginning on 1st January, 2013. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income will be
modified accordingly when the amendments are applied.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,

as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating

policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary prior to lst
January, 2010, the excess/shortfall of the consideration paid
over/below the fair values of the underlying assets and liabilities
actributable to the additional interests in a subsidiary acquired
is recognised as goodwill or discount on acquisition. Excess of
fair values over the carrying amounts of the underlying assets
and liabilities attributable to the additional interests is debited
to reserve on acquisition. On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary
or revaluation or disposal of the underlying assets of that
subsidiary, the attributable reserve on acquisition is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal or

gain or loss on revaluation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity

therein.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-

controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.
Business combinations

Business combinations that took place after 1st January,
2005 and prior to 1st January, 2010

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are

recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in

the consolidated income statement.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholder’s
proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities recognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations
of another entity for which the agreement date is before st
January, 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date of

acquisition.

From Ist January, 2005 onward, the Group will carry goodwill

at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unic first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not

reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in

the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
loses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payment on

behalf of that associate.

The associate’s financial statements used for the application of
equity method of accounting are prepared using uniform
accounting policies with the Group for transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of the associate to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used in the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.

The requirements of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in associates. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement. When a group entity
transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant

associate.
Interests in jointly controlled entities

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the jointly controlled
entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that

jointly controlled entity.

The jointly controlled entity’s financial statements used for the
application of equity method of accounting are prepared using
uniform accounting policies with the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of a
jointly controlled entity to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used in the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0 B R Mk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in jointly controlled entities.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement. When a group entity
transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the Group, profits
or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in

the jointly controlled entity.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the

consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised

and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other prem jums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument
or where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are investments held for trading. The Group classified such
financial assets as held for trading investments as they has been

acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated income statement includes any dividend or interest

earned on the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0 B R Mk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, cash and bank balances, amounts due
from associates and jointly controlled entities) are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include that Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, significant financial difficulty
of the issuer or counterparty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the borrower being probable to enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when there is objective evidence that the loans and
receivables are impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective

interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the loans and receivables are reduced
by the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When trade and other
receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the consolidated income

statement.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject
to a restriction that the carrying amount of the loans and
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-for-maturity investments and loans

and receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in investment reserve is

reclassified to the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0 B R Mk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. Any impairment losses
on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses on available-
for-sale equity investments will not reverse in the consolidated
income statement in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised in other

comprehensive income and accumulated in investment reserve.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period. An
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent periods.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrument is
recognised and deducted directly in share capital for par value
and in share premium for total amount paid in excess of par
value. The same amount recognised in share capital will be
transferred from retained earnings to capital redemption reserve.
No gain or loss is recognised in consolidated income statement
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s

own equity instruments.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0 B R Mk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment losses other than goodwill and financial
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # 5

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in the consolidated income statement for

the period in which they arise.

Transfer from investment properties to properties held for sale
will be made when there is a change of use, evidenced by
commencement of development with a view to sale. The fair
value of the related property will be transferred as the cost of
the properties held for sale, any difference between the carrying
value and the fair value of the related property at the date of

transfer is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Transfer from investment property to property, plant and
equipment will be made when there is a change in use as
evidenced by commencement of owner occupation. The fair
value of that item will be transferred as the cost of property,
plant and equipment subject to appropriate depreciation. For
property interest held under operating lease previously classified
as an investment property and accounted for as if it were a
finance lease under the fair value model, the Group shall
continue to account for the lease as a finance lease, even if
subsequent event changes the nature of the property interest so

that it is no longer classified as investment property.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits is expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated

income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # 8 & —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes other than construction
work-in-progress, are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction work-in-progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. When the construction is completed
and the asset is available for use, the related cost is transferred
to appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and

depreciated in accordance with the following policy.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assets other
than construction work-in-progress less their estimated residual
value over their estimated useful lives by equal annual

instalments at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and
buildings

2% to 4% or over the terms of
the relevant lease

4% to 13%

18% to 40%

Plant and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment and

motor vehicles

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date of
transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be

transferred directly to retained earnings.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in

the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties held for sale/properties under development
(current asset)

Properties held for sale/properties under development (current
asset) are stated at the lower of cost/deemed cost and estimated
net realisable value. Properties under development which are
intended for sale in the ordinary course of business upon

completion are classified as current assets.

Properties transferred from investment properties to properties

held for sale are stated at deemed cost on date of transfer.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated

income statement in the year in which they are incurred.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discount.

When properties are developed for sale, income is recognised
only when the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers. Payments received from purchasers
prior to this stage are recorded as receipts in advance under

current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # 5 - F—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Sales of investments held for trading is recognised on a trade

date basis.

Property management fee income is recognised on an
appropriate basis over the relevant period in which the services

are rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Revenue from media and entertainment events organised by co-
investors is recognised, when the events are completed and the

revenue is agreed with co-investors.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.

B 0 B R Mk
R e R

4, BEGFEOR @)

W AR (45)

WA (R A6 % AP R A R 48 2 B
B ) 2 RIS T LARE [H] 25 R Ve - i
ARME R S T 2 R ARG > T
1) 3 5 T ) 20 T IR 475 o A B 6 7 YL
ARG T A AR A T 2%
TS SR T (L 2 ) R o

H R B A B i S R P A REERS
AR ©

TSR BEIRBS BT A WA > TESR BB A

PG H S H A RE AT o

W) SEAE AR WA PR A R A B
fh] 79 2 {3 A5 R AR

RN Z S WA U E SE LA B
H)AF I RRERD o

e[ £ S 0 A I 16 M TE 9
A TEIE H 58 A% sZ WO B IL [R] B¢ & 3 1ih

FE RFRERR. o

A H HE 2 BB M TE A B B A I
HERI R AR -

Annual Report 2012 4F BEAE

92



93

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in the consolidated income statement for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (foreign currencies translation reserves). Such exchange
differences are recognised in the consolidated income statement

in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0 B R Mk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported
in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and jointly controlled entities, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the general
principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected

manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when they relate to items charged or
credited directly to other comprehensive income, in which case
the current tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0 B R Mk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Film distribution rights

Film distribution rights are rights acquired or licensed from

outsiders for exhibition of films.

Film distribution rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Film distribution rights are
amortised on the proportion of actual income earned during
the year to the total estimated income over their economic
beneficial period. Additional amortisation/impairment loss is
made if future estimated projected revenues are adversely
different from the previous estimation. Estimated projected

revenues are reviewed at regular intervals.

An impairment loss is made if there has been a change in the
estimate used to determine the recoverable amount and the

carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase
in share option reserve. If a director or an employee chooses to
exercise options, the related share option reserve is transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
related share option reserve is transferred directly to retained

earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # 5

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the

terms of the relevant lease.
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense

over the lease terms on a straight-line basis.
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance or
an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases, in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of

the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “lease premium for land” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease terms on a straight-line basis except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under

the fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
As a result, the Group has recognised deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of investment properties on the basis that the
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that will follow from
the manner in which the Group expects at the end of the
reporting period to recover the carrying amount of the

investment properties.
Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax varies
amongst different jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and
the Group has not finalised its land appreciation tax calculation
and payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgment is required in determining
the amount of the land appreciation tax and its related income
tax provisions. The Group recognised the land appreciation tax
based on management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will have impact on the income
tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with

local tax authorities.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date of
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value (Note 24).
If the expectation on assumption differs from the original
estimate or there are changes in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of the previous estimation, such differences
will impact the carrying amount of goodwill whenever such

estimates are changed.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 32 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share

capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. When necessary, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the

issue of new debt or the repayment of existing debt.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

b)

Categories of financial instruments

TR
a) AT HZEMW

2012 2011
e T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Fi#x T#IT
Financial assets W& E
Fair value through profit or loss BT EFE ARG Z
investments held for trading HFE®RE 246,384 429,897
Loans and receivables (including cash BN WO (BIEHH 4
and cash equivalents) KBl &EHEH) 4,312,166 3,939,628
Available-for-sale investments Ak E R E 118,570 107,320
Financial liabilities W 1
Amortised cost i $5 A 5,017,569 3,975,989

Financial risks management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, investments held for
trading, trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associates and a jointly controlled entity, pledged bank
deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and other payables
and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely
and effective manner. There has been no significant
change to the Group’s exposure to financial risks or the

manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks

()

(i)

Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the Group are
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”)
which is a foreign currency other than functional
currency (i.e. HKD) of the relevant group entities
(see Note 29(d)). No analysis is presented on HKD
against USD as HKD is pegged to USD and
management of the Company believes the foreign
exchange exposure is insignificant. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arises.
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank deposits in the PRC and
variable-rate bank borrowings (see Note 32 for
details of these borrowings). It is the Group’s policy
to keep its borrowings at variable-rate of interest so
as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arises.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market
deposit rate and the PRC official lending rate and
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from
the Group’s Renminbi (“RMB”) borrowings and
HKD borrowings respectively.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. SR H )

b) Financial risks management objectives and b) BB BE AT B H B R BOR (1)

policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued) W 5 B B ()

(i) A B ()

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates risks for bank
balances and variable-rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared on the balance at the end of
reporting period. 50 and 100 basis point (2011: 50
and 100 basis point) increase or decrease are used
respectively which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

In relation to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
risk on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 50
basis points (2011: 50 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 would increase/decrease by

HK$14,384,000 (2011: HK$14,145,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates risk on its variable-rate bank
borrowings, if interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2011: 100 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31st December,
2012 would decrease/increase by HK$17,171,000
(2011: HK$18,792,000).
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b)
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7. SWITH %)
Yo 5 e g 4 B I e B ()

Financial risks management objectives and b)
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued) i B B (4E)

(iii) Equity price risk (i) SR A b B

The Group’s equity instruments (classified as
investments held for trading and available-for-sale
investments) expose the Group to equity price risks.
Management intends to manage this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with

different risk profiles.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
end of reporting period for the Group’s equity
instruments excluding available-for-sale investments
measured at cost less any identified impairment

losses.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2011: 10%) higher/lower:

*  post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 would increase/decrease by
HK$20,573,000 (2011: HK$35,896,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of
investments held for trading; and

e other comprehensive income would increase/
decrease by HK$6,903,000 (2011:
HK$5,778,000) for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of listed available-for-
sale investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
not representative of the Group’s equity risk as it
only reflects the impact of equity price changes to
equity securities held at the year end but not the

exposure during the year.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31st December, 2012 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets in the carrying amount
of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management will monitor the payment status of
customers and perform necessary procedures to ensure

that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group will
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover any
overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the Directors of the Company consider that the

Group’s exposure to bad debts is minimal.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation. Other
than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings,
the Group does not have any other significant

concentration of credit risk.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on advance to non-controlling shareholder
is limited because the non-controlling shareholder is a

state-owned enterprise.

Furthermore, trade receivables consist of a large number

of customers spread across diverse industries.
Liquidity risks

The Group is not exposed to any significant liquidity risk
as it has sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations

when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents generated from operations which are deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The Group will consider to raise bank

borrowings when it is necessary.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risks (Continued)
Liquidity risk table

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at

the end of the reporting period.

b)

S5 R 4 B H B B SR ()

LB ¥ B (A7)
) W

N R FESI AR A JF AT 2R BB R
ZERT AR BN o R TIRYE
7 42 ) 7 AT RE SR A 2R P R R
i fc B HO 2 B B R T BB &
U 6T o SRS FLE KA &
Z B o A R &R B A
TP T > R BB DU
HIRZ A RAGH -

Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
effective ~ orlessthan 3 months 6 months undiscounted carrying
interestrate 3 months  to 6 months tolyear Overlyear  cashflows amount
mHEE  REkK  =WAZE AMA AFEB S
AR =ZWAA AR - -ERE O REEE O RAH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tt T T#n Ti#x T Ti#n
As at 31st December, 2012 /A S
+ZAZ—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3 fif 4 1 £ f&
Trade and other payables T8 5 MR ok R
SRR - TTT6 - - - TRT6 THTT6
Bank borrowings RATfE
- variable rate -8 6.031% 681,320 69,908 1,118,853 3,086,943 4957004 4277193
1,421,096 69,908 1,118,853 3,086,943 5,696,800 5,017,569
As at 315t December, 2011 BB
e
Non-derivative financial liabilities JEffi/k: 1 £ &
Trade and other payables RS AR R
AR iR - 630,406 - - - 630,406 630,406
Bank borrowings G
- variabl rate i 6476% 424119 4T3 80065 2674115 4002772 3345583
1,054,525 54,473 850,005 2,6074115 4633178 3975989

The above undiscounted cash flows amounts could
change if there are movements in floating interest rates

subsequent to the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. SBTH @)
b) Financial risks management objectives and b) WM B AT B H B R BOR (1)

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risks (Continued) TREE 4 R B (4)
Liquidity risk table (Continued) By B (4
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are A R AE R K SR AT AR K
included in the “On demand or less than 3 months” time How Bz abrdst A TR E
band in the above analysis. As at 31st December, 2012 =8 LA BB o A "R — AR
and 2011, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts r=F——F+"HA=+—H %
and carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to S BRAT A A 2 R T B A < B S AR T
HK$245,000,000. Taking into account the Group’s {H 48 1 245,000,000 #5 76 » R 5 KA
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is L 2 BB R DL - HE AR AR
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary A7 4% W] REAT (6 10 55 2 TR e HE DL BEoR
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors R - EHEL > ARMBRTE
believe that such bank loan will be repaid within 3 O e B SR 1 o BT 2 T o AR
months to 6 months after the end of the reporting period H A 5 A AR 1% = 2 50 A R
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in o R > AR B KR B B T
loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and HRHE I 2 248,392,000 #E 7T (—F——
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$248,392,000 4F 1 248,689,000 #5T0) ©

(2011: HK$248,689,000).

c¢) Fair value c) AV

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities DA A M I BRI N TE E E

are determined as follows: L/

. the fair values of financial assets with standard terms . A A TR B AR R A S
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets BB 5 2 GMEREZ
are determined with reference to quoted market ANE T2 % T 5 AE B E
prices; and )3

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial . oAt BA 5 P R BS B
liabilities are determined in accordance with ST IR 4 B LB 4 B b
generally accepted pricing models based on B BB E R U E -

discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of ARG AR S BT R R 8
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at B B BR ) RS R S AR R
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements T {E LA T A -

approximate their fair values.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d)

7. SR H )

Fair value measurements recognised in the d) R ER A B R O R R Y AT

consolidated statement of financial position 5t

The following table provides an analysis of financial RS HERED AT HEE 2

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial Z &R T BN HAg Bl AT

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based BERESB—Z = -

on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived . BN E T R
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market 7 BB R A TS BT T R Al
for identical assets or liabilities; I (REETHEE) :

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived . BN TEF R TR — )
from inputs other than quoted prices included FPAZIRES  RAEESA
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or & AT B4 (B %) B2 (B
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly EREL- IR Tk~ 1PN € T
(i.e. derived from prices); s

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived . B =N TEFT & TR A FE
from valuation techniques that include inputs for R 4% AT B 5% T 1 v (418
the asset or liability that are not based on observable KA 2 EERARKZ
market data (unobservable inputs). fEAE T LA o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no Level AR IR 5 AN 4 [0 4 SR A ek

2 or 3 fair value measurements financial instruments. BN THEFE AR T H -

Level 1
B
2012 2011
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T
Financial assets at fair value through &2 PG AHLIEZ
profit or loss A A
Non-derivative financial assets s JEATAE A
held for trading 246,384 429,897

Available-for-sale financial assets Wt R R

Listed equity securities AR 69,033 57,783

Total L 315,417 487,680

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in both

years.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # 5 - F—

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS
AND REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of revenue under the following

headings:
(i) Property investment

—  represents revenue from property management and

rental income
(ii) Property development and trading

- represents gross revenue received and receivable

from sales of properties
(iii) Industrial operations

—  represents the gross revenue from sale of

manufactured PVC pipes
(iv) Leisure

—  represents the income from golf club operations and

its related services
(v) Media and entertainment

- represents the gross revenue received and receivable
from investment in concerts, film exhibition and

related income

Gross proceeds from operations include the gross proceeds
received and receivable from investments held for trading under
the business of securities trading, in addition to the above

aggregated revenue.

8.
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8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS 8. HMEBWARABBMBA )
AND REVENUE (Continued)
Revenue and gross proceeds from each type of business for the BEF—"HFT-H=Z1T—HILFESX
year ended 31st December, 2012 consist of the followings: JH S Z WA TR i 2 AR T 51 4%
I -
2012 2011
D 2 3 TR
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T#or
Revenue from sale of properties BEYEZ WA 221,073 1,584,876
Revenue from sale of goods SHE M A Z A 36,308 41,636
Revenue from rendering of services from B e Bk e ER it
golf club operations RS 2 e A 67,466 100,575
Revenue from property rental and L EIEY &= E L UN
management fee 211,381 182,881
Revenue from media and entertainment RS T e ga SE T 2 A 26,167 9,637
Revenue A 562,395 1,919,605
Gross proceeds from sale of and REREZHER
dividend income from investments [N N &
held for trading 241,806 100,443
Gross proceeds from operations K8 Wk A 804,201 2,020,048
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are based on
information reported to the chief operating decision makers,
the Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment. In addition to
those set out in Note 8(i) to (v), the Group’s operating
segments under HKFRS 8 include securities trading segment

which is dealing in investments held for trading.

9. ABEN

AR 2 Rk o U 4ou IR S T
Do SERHFEAS B BT ) 2 P (RD
AN FRATER) Prkl < Gl o) o
B B 5E 8 () 2 (v) o > A S AR BB s 1
B HE U2 8 SR A UR F AR R 1
BHRECHEREIM -

2012 —®—TUF
Property
Property Development  Industrial Mediaand  Securities
Investment ~ and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Entertainment Trading Total
HES Rk
WERE R TREE O WWEE  REEN  ERHA it
HKS$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HK$000
Ti#tn Ti#n T#n T#r Titn Titn Ti#tn
GROSSPROCEEDS FROM &5 4
OPERATIONS
- SEGMENT REVENUE - A AL380 21073 36,308 67,466 26,167 241806 804,201
RESULTS *8
Segment profit (loss) MR (B8 257,698 (000  (4L116)  (18,859) (6319 43850 215248

Other unallocated income EWATHERA
Unallocated expenses AT B
Finance costs BEER

Share of results of associates ElBE Rl 2 5

Share of results of EiiAEC L7 5
jointly controlled entities

Profit before taxation BB Al

98,340
(48915)
(151,902)

112,771
(423)

4,196

116,544
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # 5

9.

R ey =0 e N

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HBER )
2011 —E——4E
Property
Property  Development Industrial Media and Securities
Investment ~ and Trading ~ Operations Leisure ~ Entertainment Trading Total
E e R
hERE REEE TEEE O MEEE  REEE  BhHEE ait
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HEKS$000 HEKS$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T FiEn Tk TiEn T
GROSSPROCEEDSFROM & i a5 4%
OPERATIONS
- SEGMENT REVENUE - HERA 182,881 1,584,876 41,636 100,575 9,637 100443 2,020,048
RESULTS £ |
Segment profi (loss) SR (B8 192,819 915,836 (4131) 2,49 (3.651)  (48187) 854935
Other unallocated income HA TR 71,953
Unallocated expenses VST LK (52,464)
Finance costs HEER (159,680)
714,744
Share of results of associates i YNV S: | (1,384)
Share of results of ElbAErEEE
jointly controlled entities 4192
Profit before taxation BB A 717,552

Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is
different from the reported revenue in the consolidated income
statement, the accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
4. For the details of revenue from each type of business and
reconciliation of segment revenue to the Group’s revenue of
HK$562,395,000 (2011: HK$1,919,605,000), please refer to

Note 8.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, share of results of associates and jointly controlled
entities, other non-recurring income and expenses and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors

for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

1 13 Tomson Group Limited 35 i F 45 WA #]
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as the chief

operating decision maker review the consolidated financial

position of the Group as a whole to assess their performance.

Management is more focus on the results of the Group.

Other Information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss:

9.

Zg b e ¥E

B YR LR IR A T A B
IRV DA T Al VA I O M R 3 O
0 2 AR A o B B
AR 2 S o

Je i 2R}

SR MR 2 2 ST -

Property
Property  Development Industrial Media and Securities
Investment ~ and Trading ~ Operations Leisure ~ Entertainment Trading  Unallocated Total
LESI )
ES 4 Rt TRER  MNREE B4R i H I IS it
HK$000 HEK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HEK$'000
Titn Titn Titn Titn Titn Titn Titn Titn
2012 “EFCE
Depreciation of property, ESE LT
plant and equipment 1,924 11,584 4200 15,465 - - 1,467 34,662
Impairment of property, EN EVE
plant and equipment - - 9,496 - - - - 9,496
Amordisation of lease premium T 1 B % 424
for land - - 760 6,401 - - 5 7,166
(Recovery)/allowance forbad AT () /
and doubtful debrs Bl (38) - 10810 - - - - 10,772
Amortisation of films BTSN
distribution rights - - - - 7,509 - - 7,509
Impairment of films FHBTERE
distribution rights - - - - 413 - - 413
Net gain on fir value changes of - # &HI A (58
investment properties B I 137,942 - - - - - - 137,942
Unrealised gain on fairvalue ~— FEREATHEH
changes of investments BELRERIG
held for trading - - - - - 14717 - 14,717
Write-down of inventories Attt - - 11,250 - - - - 11,250
1 -
Depreciation of property, 5 R R TE
plant and equipment 1,924 8,446 4246 15,664 - - 1492 31772
Amortsacion of lease premium ] 5% F
for land - - 753 6,341 - - 5 7,09
(Recovery)/allowance and TR () /
written off for bad and Bl Rl
doubtful debes (5 - (843) (71) 690 - - (229)
Net gain on disposal and REMELERATH
fair value changes of BHEEUEFE
investment properties 104746 - - - - - - 104,746
Unrealised loss on fir value & A T B
changes of investments EEZRERER
held for trading - - - - - 2153418 - 53,418
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about Major Customers

For the year ended 31st December, 2012, revenue from two
customers in the property development and trading segment
amounted to HK$80,316,000 and HK$75,899,000 which
contributed to approximately 14.28% and 13.50% respectively,

of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011, revenue from single
customer in property development and trading segment
amounted to HK$245,125,000 which contributed to
approximately 12.77% of the Group’s total revenue.

Geographical Information

The Group’s operations, assets and revenue are substantially
situated in or derived from the mainland China. The Group’s
revenue of property investment and property development and
trading from external customers is based on location of
properties sold and leased out. Revenue of industrial operations
from external customers is based on the location of customers.
Revenue of leisure from external customers is based on the

location of services provided.

Revenue from media and entertainment business is based on
the location of the concerts or films exhibited, which are

substantially derived from Hong Kong.

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred tax assets,
amount due from associates and a jointly controlled entity,
other receivable, available-for-sale investments and pledged
bank deposits, amounted to HK$8,286,385,000 (2011:
HK$8,122,419,000) by geographical location of the assets and
operation of the associates and jointly controlled entities are

substantially situated in the mainland China.

Analysis of Group’s revenue by each type of business is set out
in Note 8.

11 5 Tomson Group Limited 35 i F 45 WA #]

vig Vg it
W EEE PR

BE_F—-"H+HA=+—HILFE
YR R B PR A MBS EF Z
WA % 80,316,000 15 7T & 75,899,000 #5 7G
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

10. OTHER INCOME 10. HABBA
2012 2011
- S R
HKS$’000 HK$°000
F#c T#T
Other income included: HAb s A fLHE -
Interest income FLE WA 55,594 40,908
Dividends from available-for-sale investments ~ AJ fit i B2 F & 27 ik Bkt A
— listed — kW 2,812 3,835
Dividends from available-for-sale investments  AJ fit H 2 F & 27 ik Bkt A
— unlisted — 3 ET 24,985 -
11. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 11, JE A fae B2 s 1
2012 2011
TE T R
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T#T
Net (allowance and written off)/recovery IR (B M sy)
for bad and doubtful debts Wi 0] 4 %A (10,772) 229
Net loss on disposal/write off of property, W - R K
plant and equipment Bliipd, Fi-beiE (108) (287)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥ 3 ~ U7 S 5 I (E (9,496) -
Net exchange (loss) gain e 58, (&5 48) Wi 4 V38 (130) 19,073
(20,506) 19,015
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BN
2012 2011
D S 2 TR
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TFi#c T
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable AR AE IR 2 SRAT R
FILE
— within five years — AR 212,144 149,793
— over five years — ARk 16,653 11,077
228,797 160,870
Less: interest capitalised (INote 22) W EARICFE (Mt 22) (76,895) (1,190)
151,902 159,680

Borrowing cost capitalised during the year arose from specific

borrowings.

B o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # 5 & —

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

“HEY A=t HIREE

13. BBt i A

2012 2011
= e
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Profit before taxation has been arrived at W ol AT A 2 0 BR
after charging:
Staff costs B LA 88,806 86,551
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BARAE A B 8,437 6,834
Total staff costs (Note) A TR (Bfat) 97,243 93,385
Auditors’ remuneration 2 BT 4 3,474 2,997
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ ~ 5 M 5% e 3 85 34,662 31,772
Amortisation of lease premium for land + b AH R
(included in administrative expenses) (FEAATECE ) 7,166 7,099
Amortisation of film distribution rights R AT RE R 8
(included in cost of sales) (FHABE & iAS) 7,509 -
Impairment of film distribution rights R BT RE W
(included in cost of sales) (FFASHE RAS) 413 -
Minimum lease payment under operating leases KA E 2 Rk 4 10,885 10,494
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses TR J e ) 2 A7 B A 149,497 475,998
and after crediting: W EkA
Gross rental income from investment properties 1% & 4 3£ HH 4 it A 44 %H 182,944 159,572
Less: direct operating expenses from investment Ji - 4 [N A FH B ULA 2
properties that generated rental income REY L HEE
during the year EE (16,547) (25,356)
Net rental income from investment properties 4% & ) 2EFH & U A V48 166,397 134,216
Dividends from investments held for trading ~ FFEH & 2 BB IA
(included in net gain (loss) in (FIARFERE
investments held for trading) st (5 18) & 4H) 1,032 1,770
Net realised gain on disposal of investment HEREYEET 2
properties (included in net gain on disposal W s VAR (FEARE W
and fair value changes of investment KON T 8 ) RF
properties) A 2 W g VAR - 266

1 17 Tomson Group Limited 35 i F 45 WA #]
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 13. BRBLw B A )

Note: Mtat -

BATRACHEN THEH ZMET

The total staff costs included emoluments paid to Directors as follows:

Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contribution
and other to pension Total
Fees benefits scheme emoluments
Wiy~ HW e 42 2 Bk
Name of Director HHEAW 4 B Ho At 5 A il # ik 4 f g
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
Tt Tt T#5 T#c
2012 C St
Executive directors HATHF
Madam Hsu Feng o it - 10,085 14 10,099
Mr. Tong Albert YRR - 3,767 14 3,781
Mr. Tong Chi Kar Charles BT - 2,581 14 2,595
M. Yeung Kam Hoi T8t Se A - 2,423 14 2,437
Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen SR - 1,488 — 1,488
Independent non-executive directors 37 I #1753 H
Mr. Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RIEFSeA 118 - - 118
Mr. Lee Chan Fai RS 118 - - 118
Mr. Sean S ] Wang ERI%EA 118 - - 118
354 20,344 56 20,754
2011 [ -
Executive directors HATE R
Madam Hsu Feng o M - 10,444 12 10,456
M. Tong Albert IR S - 3,350 12 3,362
Mr. Tong Chi Kar Charles B R - 2,151 12 2,163
Mr. Yeung Kam Hoi B i e - 2,420 12 2,432
Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen HERE A - 1,514 - 1,514
Independent non-executive directors V. JE HL 17 # 3
Mr. Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RIS 113 - - 113
Mr. Lee Chan Fai 2PN e 113 - - 113
M. Sean S ] Wang ERIeE 79 - - 79
Resigned director BHEE
Madam Tung Wai Yee R L 43 6 - 49
348 19,885 48 20,281

No Directors waived any emoluments for both years.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 13. BRBLw A (4)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 and 2011, all of the Br _E2—-_"FTK_F——F1+_H
five highest paid individuals of the Group were Directors. = HARAFEE > TEASE F f B 2 T

AL AES -

Senior management only comprises the Executive Directors AR BN B R B SCHRS 2 AT
listed above, so no separate disclosure for remuneration of 35 WU ST I R A L B 2 I o

senior management is presented.

14. TAXATION 14. BiX
2012 2011
S e
HKS$’000 HK$°000
Fi#oL T#r
The charge comprises: S ELAE
PRC (other than Hong Kong) Enterprise e AL H G T A B AR
Income Tax calculated at tax rates R 2E RS e Bl 2
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions BATBIRFEIE 2
where the relevant individual group (NEFEFUS) A2
companies operate S HL 52,415 279,331
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) A () - 3 (B R 79,650 566,215
Dividend withholding tax JB S AN SEL 784 621
Underprovision (overprovision) in prior years  #f f 4F B 5 A5 /2
(EB R
— PRC (other than Hong Kong) — P (NEFEE)
Enterprise Income Tax TSR 2,883 (7,246)
Taiwan withholding income tax BENSITRE 239 -
135,971 838,921
Deferred tax credit (Note 33) RIEBIIEAR A (B 71 33) (27,891) (200,784)
Total tax charges for the year AF JEE B TH B S MR 108,080 638,137
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

14. TAXATION (Continued)

The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2011:
16.5%). No tax is payable on the profit arising in Hong Kong
since the assessable profit is wholly absorbed by tax losses

brought forward.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No.
63 of the President of the PRC. On 6th December, 2007, the
State Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations
of the New Law. The New Law and Implementation
Regulations changed the tax rate from 15% to 25% with effect
from 1st January, 2008. There will be a transitional period for
enterprises that currently receive preferential tax treatments
granted by relevant tax authorities. Enterprises that are subject
to a PRC income tax rate lower than 25% may continue to
enjoy the lower PRC income tax rate and gradually transfer to
the new PRC income tax rate within five years after the effective
date of the New Law.

The major subsidiaries have their operations located in Pudong
New Area, Shanghai, the PRC, according to the New Law
which was effective on 1st January, 2008, the income tax rate
was 18% with effect from 1st January, 2008 and will be
gradually increased to 25% in 5 years. The income tax rate for
the year ended 31st December, 2012 is 25% (2011: 24%).

14. BLIE (49)

B W A B BT 2 BLR S5 16.5% (—F
——4F 1 16.5%) o PR A AR 2 RERRBL
T R 8 E R B T e 1 A T KB > Rl
AT fu] FEE A R A5 B IA

7 JFEAth ] [ 2 A 2 B I T A B ] 12
Rl 2 AT RFHA

RO EEEEZHFAE  RELRE E
JiE 455 63 WRAE MR P B A ZE T A B ) ([
Blik]) e MOFZREEFANH >
IR 45 o AL A 7 o 1k B i 4 ) o B B 0 S
HMAER R R NF—H—H it
FH 15% 9% 25 25% o B3 =2 47 A B BL 5 4%
MR BB I 2 A s M UE Y - 31K
i 259% 2 H B i 15 Bl S4Bl . A2 > nl 4
A A A P B I AR BRI TR I AR
SR FAR TN > 1245 48 U 2 3 v I T A5 B
$o

F- B A ) S P B T I R
Hrim > RN TR/ F—H—HERZ
LS R/ E—H— Bl g
Pl B2 2 18% » Sl A% 1 FLAF N IZ 25 1 N &
25% c WME_FE—_MF T HA=Z+—HIkE
AETE 2 TAS BB R A 25% (& —— 4 ¢
24%) °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

14. TAXATION (Continued) 14. ﬁm(
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before R B R A R 3% 2 bR BRI A1 2 B
taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows: ,ﬂEﬁlﬂ: :

2012 2011
S S e Sl 0
HKS$°000 HK$000
Fi#x T
Profit before taxation (excluding share R i e A (AN 6245 E AL
of results of associates and /NI S-S
jointly controlled entities) 2E4T) 112,771 714,744
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% &A1 FT 15554 2% 25%
(2011: 24%) (Note) (ZF——4F : 24%)
FH R BUH (BfAE) 28,193 171,539
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AT AR i 18 2 B BS 5 B 30,023 49,619
Tax effect of expenses that are not it 7 JRE AR Ui A Ip N R AR
deductible in determining taxable profit FIE BH S 2 BB i 2B 24,695 52,137
Tax effect of income that is not assessable 15 52 & SR Ji5 1) R 264
in determining taxable profit RBLISC N 2 BB 5 2 (11,854) (2,881)
Utilisation of tax losses previously B DAE R iR 2
not recognised Tt YA e 18 (4,357) -
Underprovision (overprovision) of TR AR TS BB AN 2
income taxes in prior years (BRI 2,883 (7,2406)
Effect on PRC LAT tf: ] - 3t (BB 2 S 37,474 373,854
Dividend withholding tax BB g 784 621
Effect of excess of applicable tax rate for ﬁ? A% S 5 VE 7 B R
deferred tax over current tax rate e 7 BRIV HA R 2 3 R SR
on taxable temporary differences Wy 2 5L 2 S - 494
Taiwan withholding income tax =R EIE Gy 239 -
Tax expense for the year AEERLIE B 108,080 638,137
Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 33. R SE ol TE 2 FEAT O B 5 33 -
Note:  The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate of the jurisdiction where the Btk : BT ER T I A5 28 A SR I 2 SR EE S T 0 2w
major operations of the Group are based. i 2 TG4 o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # 8 & —

B 0 B R Mk
R e R

DIVIDEND 15. BB
The Directors declared payment of an interim dividend of 6.5 FEHRERKZ -EZ—-F+_H=1+—H

HK cents per share (2011: 4 HK cents per share) amounting to
approximately HK$93,313,000 (2011: HK$56,581,000) for
the year ended 31st December, 2012.

Of the dividend paid during the year, approximately
HK$35,054,000 was settled in shares under the Company’s
scrip dividend scheme approved by the Board on 30th March,
2012 in respect of the interim dividend for the year ended 31st
December, 2011.

Of the dividend paid during 2011, approximatcely
HK$49,072,000 was settled in shares under the Company’s
scrip dividend scheme approved by the Company on 2nd June,
2011 in respect of the final dividend of the year ended 31st
December, 2010.

IRAERE 2 rh I BB I 6.5 R I (& ——
R4 o A3 593,313,000 i
Jo (& ——4 1 56,581,000 # JC) °

RIFEHE R/ —F—4F = H =+ Hi#
FoR—— 4t A= —HIEFEZ P
WIS HE 2 DLBAC B 58 A4 B4
i@ EPf(J 35,054,000 #5 70 T3 AR AR S A5 o

WIEANFR —F——4HENH T HEE
TE-FE A S HIEEEZ AW
B AL LB E R #]  R —R——4F
LA IS R 49 49,072,000 5 55 )5 DL 2
£} o

EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. )R H A
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AR T RE 3 R N AL B S A R 4 v A%
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BATIRIELA T ERIFHE -
following data:
2012 2011
S-S E SR 2
HKS$’000 HK$000
Fitr FitE
Earnings &
Profit for the year attributable to owners SN AR A R K
of the Company for the purposes of B A AR B A 2 A ]
basic earnings per share and HE £ 55 A B A i )
diluted earnings per share 17,054 15,210
Number of shares Ji ¥ H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 7134 45 i 5 4 24 1| 2 8 38 A
for the purpose of basic earnings per share il RESE 5 8 1,426,091,137 1,406,107,408
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares 5 % % 2 V& 7 4 1 5 2
— share options — W - 527,427
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 135 45 i # 1% 21 Fl| 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings 288 N HE T34
per share 1,426,091,137  1,406,634,835
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 16. BB (#)
BE_F-_—HF+_HA=+—HI K
FREHE 2 47 (o (B 2 A 2 - B B 8 T
B 2 A5 R THE 4 2 S A I R

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31st December, 2012 did not assume the exercise of the

share options because their exercise price is higher than the

average share price.

HEATE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. #EWE
The Group
L |
HKS$’000
T
AT FAIR VALUE 2FE
At 1st January, 2011 W oFz——F—H—H 5,853,656
Net gain on fair value changes on date of disposal A E B AP E R
i 2 1 AR 266
Disposal e (1,169)
Gain on fair value changes at the end of e IR A TE A B A A 2 WS
the reporting period 104,480
Exchange adjustments [EE i, 3 3 273,080
At 31st December, 2011 W FE——4E+=H=+—H 6,230,313
Transferred from property, plant and equipment T HYIZE - WU Bkt 330,770
Addition NE 4,151
Gain on fair value changes at the end of Heh WIR AP E S B = 2R 2 s
the reporting period 137,942

Exchange adjustments [ifE 53, 34 % 56,809
At 31st December, 2012 W2 —-_"4#+-H=+—H 6,759,985

The Group’s investment properties are held outside Hong

Kong and are held under operating leases.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st
December, 2012 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by a professional independent valuer
not connected with the Group. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties and the net income derived from existing tenancies
with due allowance for reversionary income potential of the
properties. As a result of the valuation, a gain on fair value
changes of approximately HK$137,942,000 (2011:
HK$104,480,000) was credited to the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31st December, 2012.

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for

as investment properties.

The carrying amount of investment properties held outside

Hong Kong shown above comprises:

17. BEWE @)

R F+ A=+t —H s AREFEZ
TG SN )5 42 B A5 (66 A G R 2 v
8 N B SE A (R RN AT I A (B 2 B Ve
UNRR Y EVEE 2 Vik/ESONiE 3= 4 ¥
B g B B TR A 1 AN 5 R 2 g
WAV TR AE o A (B B 30T (B 3 )
AR W AR 40 137,942,000 5 00 ( & ——4F
104,480,000 # 7C) L 7F A B E = F — T 4F
TA=T - HIEFEEZ S ARIEER

AL B EACEA B A > DUROH 5 sl 1
BRI TR B ) SEHE 28 T 45 8 PR X
FHE S A BIRIIE A BCE W -

DA TR s USRS 10 15 ) 26 2 MR T
B

2012 2011
ZE I —E
HKS$’000 HK$000
T80 T

Held under: WL N A A
Long lease AT A 5,179,793 5,019,748
Medium-term lease W AT %) 1,580,192 1,210,565
6,759,985 6,230,313
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W3 ~ Wi B i
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Construction ~ equipment
land and Plant and work-in- an,
buildings  equipment progress motor vehicles Total
T
L ‘ skl
3 S )T Y AR A sk

HK$000 ~ HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS$000  HKS$'000
Ti#n Ti#n T T Ti#7

THE GROUP AEE
At cost iR A
At st January, 2011 R_F——F—H—H 551,087 80,768 202 100,757 732,814
Additions NE 340,392 358 - 3,290 344,040
Disposals e - - - (272) (272)
Wiritten off 6] - - (207) (1,111) (1,318)
Exchange adjustments HFE . 24,219 3,770 5 4,058 32,052
At 31st December, 2011 R oF——1F

TZH=+—H 915,698 84,896 - 106,722 1,107,316
Additions NE ‘ - 1,053 - 1,735 2,788
Transferred to investment properties 18 % # &4} 3 (336,610) - - - (336,610)
Disposals e - (1,519) - (626) (2,145)
Exchange adjustments W b, 0 8 6015 0686 - 751 2,052
At 31st December, 2012 N E—TAE

+ZA=1—H 579,703 85,116 - 108,582 773,401
Accumulated depreciation Ziat i R

and impairment

At st January, 2011 W_F——tf—H—H 225,046 66,169 - 78,305 369,520
Provided for the year R 23,691 1,406 - 6,675 31,772
Eliminated on disposals B - - - (244) (244)
Eliminated on written off G e - - - (979) (979)
Exchange adjustments i 3, 7 9,968 3,088 - 3,161 16,217
At 31st December, 2011 h R

TZA=1—H 258,705 70,663 - 86,918 416,286
Provided for the year AE N 26,731 1,175 - 6,756 34,662
Impairment g - 7,103 - 2,393 9,496
Eliminated on disposals %Tﬁﬁfﬁﬁ - (1,367) - (511) (1,878)
Eliminated on transfer to LY EN e L E S

investment properties 8 (15,147) - - - (15,147)

Exchange adjustments B 5, 4 85 1,878 570 - 610 3,058
At 31st December, 2012 WoF—TF

+-H=+—H 272,167 78,144 - 96,166 446,477
Carrying values R
At 31st December, 2012 R_F—T4F

+ZA=+—H 307,536 6,972 - 12,416 326,924
At 315t December, 2011 Rt

+ZA=+—H 656,993 14,233 - 19,804 691,030
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0 B R Mk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group’s leasehold land is situated outside Hong Kong

under medium-term lease.

During the year, an owner-occupied property was reclassified to
an investment property because its use has been changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation in accordance with
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. The fair value of the property
at the date of transfer was HK$330,770,000 and was
determined by a professional independent valuer using direct
comparison approach. A revaluation gain of HK$9,307,000
and a corresponding deferred tax effect of HK$2,327,000 were
recognised in the other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31st December, 2012.

As at 31st December, 2012, the Directors conducted a review
of Group’s production facilities under industrial operation. In
the opinion of Directors, the relevant production facilities
become excessive and obsolete. Accordingly, an impairment loss
of approximately HK$9,496,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st
December, 2012.

18.

Y3k ~ W B A ()

AAE ] 2 AR A AU LA > 4%
WAARA -

BN > B YRGS e R
B4 [ HEYE] BEH DB AREY
¥ R E B RGO E &L
M ZYEREBAOB L ATES
330,770,000 % T - 7% 4 A ) 48 B 2L T,
(HATR A E Rk EE - RE F—
FE+ A=+ —HIEERE EAG IR
9,307,000 % JC M A ME HE #E Bl B FL A
2,327,000 % 70 £ 7 HoAth 2> Tl £5 P AERR o

WoFE - HA=+1—H s EEEA
L T3NS NI Rt i T R o
BB E > A B R R SR A R o
Hit > #2 - F— 4+ A=+—H1k
AEFE S S E TR 4T 9,496,000 T B R GRS
FIH 26 b R

LEASE PREMIUM FOR LAND 19. LRI EM
The Group’s lease premium for land comprises: A AL 2 b S A
2012 2011
—E T4 TR A
HK$°000 HK$000
T T#T
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: TEA s AT A 5 2 T4t
Medium-term lease A A 171 175
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: U LLAN AR A5 2 4t -
Long lease RAMHA 70,093 76,499
70,264 76,674
Analysed for reporting purposes as: Pyt BT 4% -
Current assets i) & 6,365 7,032
Non-current assets I Ty 63,899 69,642
70,264 76,674
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

20. FILM DISTRIBUTION RIGHTS 20. P BATHE

The Group HKS$°000
AL T#7T
Cost BLAR
At 1st January, 2011 hoF——4F—H—H -
Additions WE 5,741
At 31st December, 2011 B oFz——F A=+ —H 5,741
Additions wE 4,347
At 31st December, 2012 Ao E -+ _H=1+—H 10,088
Amortisation and impairment 18 5 B IAE
At 1st January, 2011 and 31st December, 2011 WoFE——F—H—H K

—EF-—Ht+-HA=+—H -
Provided for the year AF T A 7,509
Impairment NoRIER 413
At 31st December, 2012 W o E -4+ _H=+—H 7,922
Carrying value R 1
At 31st December, 2012 nw_Z2——#+"H=+—H 2,166
At 31st December, 2011 N E——4E+ - H=+—H 5,741
Film distribution rights are amortised on the proportion of SR BEATRE T gl L A I R i B 4 A O B P
actual income earned during the year to the total estimated WA B AL AG IS BB 2 L B

income over their economic beneficial period.

Based on the projected revenue from the film distribution WIE 1T R TE IR A > B (E I 18
rights, impairment loss amounted to HK$413,000 was 413,000 ¥ JC CL A A 1 N AERR

recognised during the year.

21. PREPAYMENT FOR FILM DISTRIBUTION 21. IS RER X
RIGHTS
Prepayment for film distribution rights represented the prepaid R AT RETEAT 3KHE 3 R B AT AR R RE TEAS
licensed rights for film distribution. The territories of film T o 5 P EEATRERY IR T T 5 A M o

distribution rights are mainly in Hong Kong and Macau.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22. HRPYIE
The Group
AL
2012 2011
S
HK$°000 HK3$°000
T#7T TitET
At 1st January, at cost R—H—H - $ZA 4,156,741 2,412,965
Additions NE 401,174 162,577
Interest capitalised GEAALFE 76,895 1,190
Transferred from deposits paid for B L M RE
land use rights eATE 470,800 1,484,387
Exchange adjustments e 3, 7 B 28,977 95,622
At 31st December, at cost P H=1+—H &K 5,134,587 4,156,741
Properties under development under current assets of UL L E A Y g v ) 2E 4 5,134,587,000
approximately HK$5,134,587,000 (2011: HK$4,156,741,000) W TG ——4F : 4,156,741,000 i T ) T
are expected to be completed after twelve months from the end FEAE IR R R 8 v A o
of reporting period.
23. DEPOSITS PAID FOR LAND USE RIGHTS 23. HHERREZ TAF &
At 31st December, 2012, deposits of HK$410,452,000 (2011: W_E-ZFEF A= —H o SR
HK$872,724,000) was paid for the land use rights located in PR AR R I 2 L R S A T 4
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the PRC with a site area of 410,452,000 #57C (—~F——4F : 872,724,000
approximately 52,500 square meters (2011: approximately WIT) o 5% lE T MR T R 47 52,500 °F 75
128,118 square meters) and the delivery of vacant possession to KT ——4 - 49128,118°FJ7K) » Mt
the Group will not be later than end of 2016. A —FE—NFRSE TALER o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

24. GOODWILL 24, F§R
The Group
AL
HK$°000
T#z
Cost and carrying value AN B W i A
At 1st January, 2011, 31st December, 2011 AT ——F—H—H
and 31st December, 2012 . ey - ety sl = 4
mF -t ZH=1—H 33,288
Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) of a PN E—F G E A AN & EA
wholly owned subsidiary which is engaged in property BT > R%N EUE T M A R R B S o
development and trading activities.
During the year ended 31st December, 2012, management of WE_F—-"F A= —HILFE
the Group determined that there was no impairment of the AL [ TG R B I A B 4 R AR B A P
CGU containing goodwill. BRI o
The recoverable amount of the CGU was measured based on B4 AR B Y AT ] B RS 225 A B
fair value less costs to sell calculation by reference to observable 22 ]S T B I AR MR N T
market price for the underlying properties. It was determined AFHE TR o ok R 0 i R A B
by management’s past experience, based on the estimated gross FE > HREEAE A8 R 1 W S8 8 nY R B A
profit from selling of properties to be developed, taking into the FHE s B RCE R THIE
consideration of the prevailing market price.
25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 25. R B A6 2B
The Group
A4 |
2012 2011
S-S E SR 2
HKS$’000 HK$000
T#T Tt
Cost of unlisted investments in associates NEE AR Z I bl
BB WA 30,203 30,203
Share of post-acquisition losses and JFRE AW WS 4% Jies 4R B
other comprehensive income, Hopth 2 T AR -
net of dividend received LB 2 i S (7,236) (6,972)
22,967 23,231
Amounts due from associates /NI 10,721 10,721
33,688 33,952
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 25. HBRE A vl ZHEdR (41)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s ASE B N R A SR N

associates is set out below:

2012 2011
S
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T Tt oc
Total assets HUE 139,134 139,301
Total liabilities AR (78,934) (78,862)
Net assets HEE 60,200 60,439
Group’s share of associates’ net assets AL EAG B & AR 2 R E 22,967 23,231
Revenue A 40,257 44,398
Loss for the year AR 1R (666) (4,491)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hoph 2 i 75 (BE S2) 427 (1,697)
Group’s share of associates’ other 7 A [ AR B AL S AN E 2
comprehensive income (expense) oA A T A (BA SC)
for the year 159 (105)
Group’s share of associates’ loss for the year 4= 42 [B] 47 & E A5 i 2 /8 7 2
18 (423) (1,384)
Group’s share of associates’ loss and AKE [ 4F AL B A R 2
other comprehensive expense K5 18 B HoAth 4 1 B S
for the year (264) (1,489)
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free - NI ORE L N SYSE T bred 3
and have no fixed repayment terms. B o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

25.

26.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, the amounts due from
associates will not be repayable within twelve months from the
end of the reporting period and accordingly, the amounts have

been classified as non-current assets.

Details of principal associates at 31st December, 2012 are
included in Note 43.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

25. ABB AR ZHERR ()

RS o BB F G R i R
+ R A AR o HI - eZaRET SR

FEBEAFRR F - A=t
H Z w08 O B it 43 o

26. REBMEFEZHER

The Group
A5
2012 2011
e e
HKS$’000 HK$000
TF#L T#IT
Cost of unlisted investments in WEBEAFEZE LT
jointly controlled entities P& A 965,954 965,954
Share of post-acquisition (losses) profits, JEAG W R (k518) B A -
net of dividend received EL bR B Y S (82) 3,566
Exchange difference arising from translation of #6545 %5 > JEIRF E = 2
jointly controlled entities B 4, 72 31 101,729 93,166
1,067,601 1,062,686
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity A B 3E KK 513 513
1,068,114 1,063,199

For the year 2010, Tianjin Tomson Development Co., Limited,
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a joint venture agreement with an unrelated PRC partner
to establish Tianjin Jinwan Property Co., Limited (“Jinwan
Property”) in the PRC and held 51% interest of registered
capital as at 31st December, 2012 and 2011. However, Jinwan
Property is jointly controlled by the Group and the PRC
partner by virtue of contractual arrangements among
shareholders by which the strategic financial and operating
decisions relating to the activity of jointly controlled entity
require the approval by at least two-third voting right in the
board meeting of Jinwan Property. Therefore, Jinwan Property

is classified as a jointly controlled entity of the Group.

1 3 1 Tomson Group Limited 35 i F 45 WA #]

A F AR AN R 2 W A e
O3 R R i e A BR 2 ) L Bl el
AR RIS — G B ik > A5 P L
KB HEEEARAR (HEEE]) - I
e S L)) B . Y =
HA & A R A S190 HE R o SR
TR E S A S G A AR A
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

26. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 26. REBEBEZHEL &)
ENTITIES (Continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of jointly AR LB G 8 AR I E
controlled entities attributable to the Group’s interest therein is BHEEAT

set out below:

2012 2011
=t
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T#or
Current assets E)E 319,536 575,317
Non-current assets B E = 780,721 729,363
Current liabilities i B B (32,656) (241,994)
Non-current liabilities FE R E) B A - -
Income recognised in consolidated A GEA ) 2R W R A £5
income statement 125,352 122,707
Expenses recognised in consolidated A i R R FERR B S
income statement (121,156) (118,515)
The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, EEARFE SR AR - A 5 K e[ SE
interest free and has no fixed repayment terms. A o
In the opinion of the Directors, the amount due from a jointly HRRS > BRI 5 R
controlled entity will not be repayable within twelve months of + Al A RAEE - WL > sZEIESEJE TR
the end of the reporting period and accordingly, the amount BEE o
has been classified as non-current assets.
Details of jointly controlled entities at 31st December, 2012 are BERAER -F-HFTF =t —HZ
included in Note 43. TR R R 43 o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 27. Wt BB

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December, 2012 W FE -+ _H=1+—HZna Lt
comprise: B
The Group
A H
2012 2011
B
HKS$°000 HK$ 000
T T#T
Listed investments: i
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong — RNEE T2 RS 69,033 57,783
Unlisted equity investments I EHIRAE 49,022 49,022
Club debenture T fE S 515 515
118,570 107,320

TR AR > BT A Al B R LA
GIBR > 2 TR A RE W 5E Rt A9 JF i
ABUE Kow s IR bRk o 3% 5% b AR 1%
B2 VAT 2 %5 Bk 2 T 8 18 A%
SE o T AR A B AR S R (B 1E o

As at the end of the reporting period, all available-for-sale
investments were stated at fair value, except for those unlisted
equity investments and club debenture, the fair value of which
cannot be measured reliably. Fair value of listed equity
investments have been determined by reference to quoted
market prices. No impairment loss was recognised for both

years.

VA B FE BT IR AS A 2 15 A I
SERRANARSE o 5% A BB R A AR AR AR
B MRS e i NS S R D)
HE K > AN A EFER L ER
RERT SE ML R4 o

The unlisted equity investments represent investments in
private entities incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at
cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the Directors of the Company are of the opinion that their

values cannot be measured reliably.

(R

HESEIRNAE LT BAE S

28. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 28.

Investments held for trading represent equity securities listed in

Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

29. NET CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Trade and other receivables and prepayments

The general credit terms of the Group given to trade
customers are within 60 days. A longer credit period may
be granted to customers with long business relationship.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk.

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables, net of impairment losses, of
HK$29,166,000 (2011: HK$39,388,000) and their aged

29. i B ¥

(a) MM BT 50 MRk ~ U fib Bl K
BBk

AEEGTHRSEF 2 BEE
WMEeo He REH B EHRTHE
MEBHRRFFRRZESM -
7 2 (6] i 63 300 OR ST ) B WS BR A
Jie it B A LI A £ LB o

1 MBS By B K~ A B A R K K
TEAS B AL I 2 Bk (484
s 8 {E 5 15) 29,166,000 3% 7T ( &

analysis as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: — —4F 1 39,388,000 5 7 ) - H A
HHIR Z MRl o AT E
The Group
AL M
2012 2011
ZE-TE FF
HKS$°000 HK$000
T TitET
0 — 3 months FE={HA 12,479 24,211
4 — 6 months W ESAN (D= 6,900 7,476
7 — 12 months &=+ A 9,787 7,701
29,166 39,388

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$24,322,000 (2011: HK$31,459,000) which are past
due but not provided for impairment loss. These
receivables relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 180 days (2011: 180
days).

A EUCE 5 IR R
3 ) A AU A A (1 e 1R 8 A4 2 B i
B oy Wk > H MR I E A 45 24,322,000
HBIT(ZF——4 © 31,459,00047T) °
M 26 R WA B K T B AS B [ 2 47 K
Mk RIF 2K T AR - R
e BHEMG > EREEE
ER AT DNE RER N F o IR
£y R A B Ie] o D ZE R I A A R
AR W A o AR B G R
S S B 2 AT AT HE o M AE R URIR
AT IR ES B 180 K (& ——4F
180 °K)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

29. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 29. WENE A ()

(a) MO BT 50 MRk ~ U fib Bl K

(a) Trade and other receivables and prepayments

(Continued) B BT 3K ()
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not i B R AR W 2 R 5 IRk
impaired: MEE T -
The Group
A4 W
2012 2011
B
HKS$°000 HK3$°000
T#T TitET
61 — 90 days 61 290K 10,748 17,186
91 — 180 days 91 £ 180K 6,086 6,572
181 — 365 days 181 £ 365K 7,488 7,701
Total i 24,322 31,459
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade TEWE 5 BBk 2 ARt 2 s ) -
receivables:
The Group
A4 W
2012 2011
ZE-TE CFF
HK$°000 HK3$°000
T-#7C TitET
Balance at beginning of the year WA R 12,713 13,171
Impairment losses recognised on U 5 AR KRR 2
trade receivables VOREN, 2RI 10,761 -
Recovery of impairment loss 135 ] 36 (B e 16 - (1,028)
Exchange adjustments [ 5, o 101 570
Balance at end of the year LSS 23,575 12,713

Other receivables with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$3,100,000 (2011: HK$3,061,000) are individually

impaired as the amount is unlikely to be recovered from

the relevant debtors.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

29. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 29. i Wy A EHE ()
(a) Trade and other receivables and prepayments () MEBCEL S Wk ~ il B MR K
(Continued) B WA 3K (4)
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts Hfth e HE SR 2 SRR 2~ s df -

on other receivables:

The Group
AR

2012 2011

e =

HKS$’000 HK$ 000

T T#IT

Balance at beginning of the year FR AR 3,061 2,821

Impairment losses recognised on At e Ath R AR AR RR 2

other receivables WEEE 11 109

Exchange adjustments EE 5, 57 & 28 131

Balance at end of the year AR AR R 3,100 3,061
For the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group has wE-F—-——H+-HA=t+—HI
written off trade receivables through the consolidated AR AR TR SR A R 2R il
income statement in the amount of HK$690,000. The B E W 2 B 3K 690,000 5 T © AN 4E
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. 1] SIf 0 RF A R S R T & R 2 AT AT S

i o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

29. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 29. B A EHE ()
(b) Inventories (b) i
Details of inventories are as follows: HFEFEWT -
The Group
A
2012 2011
R TR TR
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T TFior
Raw materials JE R 1,991 5,856
Work-in-progress e B 1,177 2,625
Finished goods B RR 4,271 11,359
Packaging materials and accessories AL EER L A B A4 6,716 7,194
14,155 27,034
(¢) Trade and other payables and accruals (© MEATE SR ~ b WE AT MR 2k
)&k 4]
Included in trade and other payables and accruals are trade TEREATE 2 Bk - HAREAT R S 76
payables of HK$161,389,000 (2011: HK$222,763,000) FE 8 TN a4 A B 5 iREK 161,389,000
and their aged analysis as at the end of the reporting period Wt (& ——4F © 222,763,00047C) >
is as follows: TR R 2 BRI AT R
2012 2011
R TR TR
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T Tor
0 — 3 months Fx ZMA 27,680 59,708
4 — 6 months LSRN (D5 568 488
7 — 12 months tE+=MA 528 1,308
Over 1 year —&Pl 132,613 161,259
161,389 222,763
The credit period on purchases is 90 days. The Group has B 25 B S 90 K o ASEF 1l
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that w1 B 5 R B A P EOSR AR £ BT A e
all payables within the credit timeframe. T BRI S S N BUE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

29. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)
(d) Cash and bank balances

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits at market deposit interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 3.5% (2011: 0.01% to 3.5%) per

annum with an original maturity of three months or less.

Included in cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the entities to which they relate:

29. % A ()
(d) BE KT

SO ALEEFA 2B & KR =
18 Bk DAk 3 399 A0 S 3 SR AT A7 K
HAT AR R AF0.01 JE £ 3.5 JH (—
F——4F  FRF0.01 HE3S5H) o

TEH & RMATA RN > ARERZ
RER LIS Z BWs 1

The Group
A4
2012 2011
mB-TAE R
HK$°000 HK$°000
Fix Fitoo
USD E 74,165 56,470
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. JBAk
Number of shares Amount
Tt ¥ H &%
2012 2011 2012 2011
B e S e S5 “F——4
HK$°000 HK$000
T#x TH#T
Ordinary shares of BIR0.50 T L
HK$0.50 each 9
Authorised BE
— Balance as at 1st - R=A—HkK
January and TZHA=+—H
31st December A 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid CHiITRCHR
— Balance as at - h—=H—Hz
Ist January whf 1,416,359,807 1,391,579,496 708,180 695,790
— Exercise of — TT{f A CHE
share options - 7,550,000 - 3,775
— Scrip dividend — DIRAE (1)
(Note 1) 21,066,227 17,230,311 10,533 8,615
— Shares repurchased — TR Rk 8
and cancelled Bt (it 2)
(Note 2) (1,836,000) - (918) -
— Balance as at - —H=+—H
31st December ZH% 1,435,590,034 1,416,359,807 717,795 708,180
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

1. On 29th June, 2011, 17,230,311 new shares of the Company were allotted and
issued at HK$2.848 per share to the shareholders, who elected to receive shares in
lieu of cash for the final dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2010. These

shares rank pari passu in all respects with the shares then in issue.

On 18th June, 2012, 21,066,227 new shares of the Company were allotted and
issued at HK$1.664 per share to the shareholders, who elected to receive shares in
lieu of cash for the interim dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2011.

These shares rank pari passu in all respects with the shares then in issue.

2. For the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Company repurchased a total of
1,836,000 of its own shares on the Stock Exchange at a price of HK$2.00 to
HKS$2.09 per share, for a total consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HKS$3,777,000. The repurchased shares were cancelled and an amount equivalent
to the nominal value of these shares of HK$918,000 was transferred from share

capital to the capital redemption reserve. The premium paid on the repurchased

30. JBEAS (#5)

Wit -

1. AN A A UE > A T 1358 DA
FREBIER > i E R —FEF A =+—H
WRAEE 2 ARIAMRS, - F2 55 1 2.848 W JU L 3% S 354 T
17,230,311 JEEAS A R A o 5% 55 I O BEL 6 IR (L %
AT = AT TR S M4 o

AT AR NH > AR AR LR A
B gl s % ——F A=+
AR RE 2 B, > 4 I 1.664 5 T it 5 I BEAT
21,066,227 JBAN R Ay o %55 MRy B IR 2 5%
AT B A =4 [l S 4 o

2. WE - A= B AR
DA B 2.00 5 G 22 2.09 5 0 1) £ 4% 7 Wi 52 o B [
31,836,000 A A A JBe A > ARACAE AR &1 B S i 40
143,777,000 #5 70 o Jf ] 1) B0 B GE S - ARG N RE
25 7y ST (E 22 918,000 75 TC 1Y 35 £ 44 i A A
A B [ ol o AT B IR 1R R IR O i

shares was charged against the share premium. B3N -
Aggregate
Number of ordinary Price per share consideration
shares of HK$0.50 each Highest Lowest paid

BB 0.50#E T2 M

Date of purchase A H el B T B H 531 5439 CAT R
HK$ HKS$ HK$000
T T T 7T
February 2012 TFE-THETH 1,836,000 2.09 2.00 3,777

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 29th May, 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”).
Under the 2002 Scheme, 52,800,000 shares of the Company
were issued upon exercise of share options in 2003, 2005, 2008,
2009 and 2011. During the year 2011, an option which had
been granted to an employee of the Group to subscribe for
2,500,000 shares of the Company lapsed upon the expiry of a
period of one month following his departure from the Group.
Therefore, the maximum number of shares available for issue
under the 2002 Scheme as at 31st December, 2011 was
55,674,911, representing approximately 3.93% of the
Company’s issued share capital at 31st December, 2011. No
options was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed from 1st
January, 2012 to 28th May, 2012. The 2002 Scheme expired
on 28th May, 2012.

31. JBeHESZ AL 22 5

AN AREN —FE T ETH LA
Y R R R PR AN — JE RS ([ =%
TAEFE D) o RIE T T AEFH AL
AIE R =F S ZEBRAF S ZEEN
A TR TUE K AT A
% %517 52,800,000 B i 13 = i % ——4F
HEE CRTALE 2R B REEA LA
2,500,000 B s 13 2. i A AR A 45 Al AT 1% — {H
H 2 1A P Jee i s e o RO - AR
TG N R A =
H > ATAEE AT I B B H 5% £ 55,674,911
> AR F®N - ——F = H =+ —
HE BT RAA3.93%  H & — " 4F—
A—HZZF—Z4FHAZ+/\H > 3K
Oz~ AT kB SRR B RE - —
FEAGFHEIRN = F—ZFHH =+ \H
R
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

A new share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on Ist June, 2012 (the “2012
Scheme”). The 2012 Scheme was set up for the primary
purpose to provide incentives or rewards to selected persons for
their contribution to the Group or any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”). Subject to
earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by
the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”), the 2012
Scheme shall be valid and effective dill 31st May, 2022. After
the expiry of such valid period, no further options will be
offered or granted but in all other respects the provisions of the
2012 Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to (i)
any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part
time) of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity,
including any executive director of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or (ii) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive director) of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (iii) any adviser,
consultant or customer of or supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (iv) any
shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of
which options may be granted under the 2012 Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 141,452,380 shares, representing
approximately 9.85% of the Company’s issued share capital at
the end of the reporting period, unless shareholders’ approval of
the Company has been obtained. The total number of shares of
the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to each participant or grantee
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual
Limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting with such participant and his or her associates

abstaining from voting.
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31. BB A 28 5 (1)

AN FIARSEIN T — AN H — HEE e
PR S BRA — T R ) ([
EFRHE L) o BROL T F - AR B
4 2 2 AL R B 8 2 N 3 A 2 A i A 4 [
FEA AT IO HE 2 AT AT B (1 BT B A )
Z B RO B A o AR 2 R A AE
AR & iR A R AR N R #E R ([
H5 ) A AR A Rt - AR
ArEEANE _F 4 HA=1+—H
1k o TA A O e I8 4R A AN B FRA T ) O
T REIRAE > M T — AR B A A5
7 T I A A A T AT AL

MRPE T — AR EERAEMTA
LA R CHE () AR AT A B 2 R R
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iy B BRI > B AR AR SR BT AT B
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with
a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant thereof. An
option may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not be more than 10 years
commencing from the date of grant of option. Save as
determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised under the 2012
Scheme. The subscription price per share of the Company in
respect of any option granted under the 2012 Scheme shall be
such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall
determine, save that such price will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of
the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets on the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares on the date of offer. Under the 2012
Scheme, no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
from 1st June, 2012 to 31st December, 2012.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

share options held by Directors during the year.

31. JBCHE AL 22 B (40)

TRAZ N R 3 S BB HE 2 HORE R 28 H Ay
PR IR AV BCRE » A R S T
VE Ty A3 H FBOHE 2 AR LRI A AT iR
[B] o S AR R T 1 S S 7 A 14 S0 ] P9 B ey
AT - P A U TR AN A 11 452 o J FS i I A0
FHEE - AF o MRYE T — TAFERHE] > BRE
e Jm o5 A TR E SR PR A IR M FBCREASE L Ry P
RUEF SN - S S AT i P REA T il 2 AT a6 2
FEA B B S R o ARYE —F — AT T
A2 AT ] S PR R T 5 o AR ) A B A
4 R (B 6F oy 8 o R R - MERZ R
AR LT =F 2 - ()T
JEHEE H (U ZH 36 B )RR 3 B 4 H it
18 2R i 9 e 4y 2 Wi A8 5 (i) B 44 g
FBCHEE I 39 iy AR 85 36 H AR B 58 B R AH
RNy 2~ WA 5 R (i) IR 4% T
S FBCHE T R BB T (D - ARIE % — —4F
Al o F - EAA-RE SR T
FrHZH=1—H BECRE - 70
A B R S L HE o

B B AR A ) A AR AT 0 A
e 248 -

Outstanding Outstanding at
Exercise price  at st January Lapsed Exercised 31t December
per share 2012 during 2012 during 2012 2012
REF-CH REF—ZH
R St ;5
Date of grant g A A AT W AAT B KA e W ARTT B
HKS
#7
13th November, 2007 “EELES—A+=H
- Diectors — &% 3.644 27,300,000 - - 27,300,000
Exercisable at the end A RERFTHE
of the year 27,300,000
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31. JRHESCAT RS (a)
(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TR TR A E R MR B R R
share options held by Directors and employees during prior 1Y A sl o
year.
Outstanding at
Exercise price Outstanding at Lapsed Exercised  31st December
pershare st January 2011 during 2011 during 2011 2011
% HoF
—-A—R RZF—% PZF——4F +ZA=t—H
Date of grant Fit Hi BRI E W RAT K frff W RATE
HK$
by
24th July, 2006 “EEANELAZFIA
- Directors - H5§ 2155 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) -
~ Employees - fE8 2155 6,050,000 (2,500,000) (3,550,000) -
13th November, 2007 “EEEE-A+=0H
- Directors -F% 3,644 27,300,000 - - 27,300,000
37,350,000 (2,500,000 (7,550,000) 27,300,000

Exercisable at the end of the year A A4 AT {fi

In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended

31st December, 2011, the weighted average share price at the

dates of exercise was HK$3.127.

1 43 Tomson Group Limited 354 M4 A+

27,300,000
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32. BORROWINGS 32. fiak
The Group
AL
2012 2011
e =
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T#T
Short-term bank loans, secured HE ISR T B > AR 1,240,396 812,761
Current portion of long-term bank loans, RIS Bz B H A
secured ZEEiii 417,456 311,033
Total short-term bank loans FELARAT B A 1,657,852 1,123,794
Long-term bank loans, secured REIRATER > A 2,619,941 2,221,789
4,277,793 3,345,583
Carrying amount repayable: JEfE IR BRIEE
On demand or within one year JEE SRS — N 1,657,852 1,123,794
More than one year, but not exceeding —4ERL EAEAS B A A
two years 875,758 382,622
More than two years but not more than A DL _EAHAS R A AR
five years 1,639,915 1,711,051
More than five years TAED | 104,268 128,116
4,277,793 3,345,583

The bank loans were secured by assets of the Group as disclosed
in Note 38.

Bank loans were floating-rate borrowings of HK$4,277,793,000
(2011: HK$3,345,583,000) which carried interest rates ranging
from 2.282% to 7.360% (2011: 2.191% to 7.872%) per

annum.

S LT PR 65 I 2 6 P A 28 38
5 -

SRAT B R A I B A %8 3K 4,277,793,000
Wt (=& ——14F © 3,345,583,000% 7G) >
AR R A F 2282 JF £ 7.360 JE (- F——
2191 JEE7.872)H) o
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION 33. BB
Accelerated Revaluation Exchange
tax of difference Tax

depreciation  properties LAT recognition losses Others Total
g B ff T ERER
BEGTE  WEEE R R BEER 4] At
HK$°000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
T#rx  Ti#ér  T#x  Tér  T#éx  T#n T#x

The Group A
Balance as at Ist January, 2011 N R ——F—~H—H
Zi*ﬁ? (52,680) (2,001,550) 650,007 (49,568) 466 6,993 (1,446,332)

Credit (charge) to consolidated A AAE 475 FI %

income statement for the year %] (1136 (5687) 88487 101,618 - 17446 (1,080) 200,784
Exchange adjustments HE 56, 2 (2,787) (408) 21,337 (2315) 2 142 1591
Balance as at RoF——1E

315t December, 2011 FOAEFHZER 61,154 (1913471) 772962 (51,883) 17,934 6,055 (1,229,557)
Credit (charge) to consolidated T BE£E A FI %

income statement for the year % [F] (F1135() (10,004) 11,611 9917 - 16l 25 27,891
Charge to other SIAH A 2R X

comprehensive expense - (2,327) - - - - (2,327)
Exchange adjustments HE 5290 % (544)  (219,041) 17,022 (417) 145 28 (202,607)
Balance as at BEF—TH

315t December, 2012 FIAZF—B2ER  (71,702) (2123,228) 800,101  (52,300) 34,190 6,339 (1,406,600)
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the purpose of consolidated statement of financial position
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes:

33. EHEBLHE (47)

RIS MBHRD RN T - 5 TRIER
THEE M AT THEE - LT A 2500
W5 2 1 AR JE B TE A5 R 0 AT

2012 2011

S S

HKS$’000 HK$000

T T

Deferred tax assets AR SR TE A 238,586 223,035
Deferred tax liabilities PR AEFLIE B R (1,645,186) (1,452,592)
(1,406,600) (1,229,557)

At 31st December, 2012, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$822.45million (2011: HK$650.30 million) available for
offset against future profits. In 2012, a deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$136,761,000 (2011:
HK$71,735,000) of such losses.

Under the New Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
Ist January, 2008 onwards. At 31st December, 2012, the
aggregate amount of distributable earnings of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries in respect of which the Group has not provided for
dividend withholding tax amounted to approximately

HK$3,349.52 million (2011: HK$3,216.76 million).

MoFE—"F A= T—H > REHEN
FAAE K 85 % A€ i 1) 2 R )y R B T g 48 4
822,450,000 #k 7T ( & ——4F : 650,300,000
WI0) o R F T4 B EERTN
136,761,000 % G ( — & — —4F : 71,735,000
W I0) MRS B IR AE B IE B o

MREEHBLE > B A w R T\ 4E
— H — H A ] i & R RS RS TE
Ble MZF—F+H=1—H  AELH
el /N I I ) o A 1 O
3,349,520,000% 70 (—F——4F  3,216,760,000
JC) o AKEE M AR S g e
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2000, Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd. (the
“Hotel Company”), a jointly controlled entity in which the
Group has a 50% interest, entered into a management
agreement for 20 years (the “Management Period”) with Inter-
Continental Hotels Corporation (the “Management
Company”). The Management Company agreed to pay not
exceeding US$6 million to the Hotel Company for hotel
renovation and system upgrading (the “Renovation Fund”).
During the Management Period, the Management Company
will receive a certain amount of management fee based on

income and profit of the Hotel Company.

The Group is a guarantor to indemnify the Management
Company up to 50% of the Renovation Fund paid, but not
exceeding US$3 million if the management agreement is
terminated by the Hotel Company within the Management
Period. The indemnified amount is amortised over the
Management Period. At the end of the reporting period, the
indemnified amount reduced to US$1,163,000 (2011:
US$1,313,000). As the Management Company is a world-class
hotel management group and the operating results of the Hotel
Company has improved, the Directors are of the opinion that
the Hotel Company would be unlikely to terminate the
management agreement within the Management Period.
Accordingly, it would be unlikely for the Group to suffer any

material financial loss as a result of giving the indemnity.

1 47 Tomson Group Limited 35 i F 45 WA #]
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W ERTA s AEEFEA 50% 4 2 G
A g SR VT BRI G A BR A A ([
JE 22 ] 1) B PR s A A A (A LA
A D) RIS — T A 204 ([ BRI ) 2
IR o A B A [RGB R & R
SRR 5 2 W] ST AR Z R 6,000,000 3
Jo([ER A D « R EBE > AR
T T A W 22 WO B i A B T B
#H -

AL A BN T 2SR i B I R
A B T O R I T A ] 46 UE > AR £
TMEEEAFAENBRERAZ RS
50% > {H AR 3,000,000 35 7T © 51 4 4E
A SR R S o AR IR > TR S
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35. COMMITMENTS 35. 7%
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following SR > AL Z FREEAR N
material capital and other commitments: fRYELT
2012 2011
= e
HKS$’000 HK$°000
TFi#oc Tt oc
Capital commitments B AR
Commitments in relation to expenditure on AR Y EL T
properties under development: R
Authorised but not contracted for B MEE R ET A 1,366,380 -
Contracted but not provided for SEESLEE S 2,667,310 178,683
Commitments in relation to expenditure on AR R BATRESC
film distribution rights: RS
Authorised but not contracted for 2 HEHRFT 4 6,092 5,490
Contracted but not provided for EHFOIEE Y 12,784 9,802
Other commitments H i A ¥
Operating lease arrangements masTE LB
i)  The Group as lessee ) AEEAERRRA
At the end of the reporting period, RS AR > AR
the Group had outstanding MsHREME -
commitments under non-cancellable REBER T
operating leases which fall due: AN B 22 A
— within one year — —4EA 8,620 9,964
— in the second to fifth year inclusive — BB AR AR
(45 H EW4F) 5,031 12,214
— over five years — HAEDL 3,046 3,525
16,697 25,703

Annual Report 2012 4E 5463 148



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

35. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 35. 7RIE ()

i)  The Group as lessee (Continued) i)

Operating lease payments represent rentals and annual
fees for use of land and properties payable by the Group
for certain of its office properties and land. The operating
leases relate to office properties with terms of between 1
to 2 years (2011: 1 to 3 years). The operating leases for
annual fees for use of land are based on lease terms of the

land which are over five years.
ii) The Group as lessor ii)

The properties held have committed tenants from the
majority of two years up to the maximum of six years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum

ASR AR Ry R AL (A7)

A 8 R B R 95 A 42 B o T
WA W) 2 N L ST 2 A 4 S AR
JE b K Wy S AR 42 o A=
Y3k 2 KB B AN P — WA
(ZF——4 —F =)« L
AR - o el P REAH 8 2 R AL A
A Y AR o

ACSE A 2 R

P 2 2 RN Z R e A R £
R > AR AN o

TR A IR > AR PR A S ] SR AL A
P aT & &) - AR ZE IR N S4B A

lease payments which fall due: A Z RARRH AT -
2012 2011
“R - “F—F
HK$°000 HK3$°000
T FitT
— within one year — —FER 142,685 119,222
— in the second to fifth year inclusive — B AR AR
(BLAE T A4 85,259 77,169
— over five years — ARk 1,593 12,347
229,537 208,738
36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 36. JBARHAH
The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) AL R T TR A MRECR
Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident Fund AR Rt B RO ) 2 B — TE g P A R
Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the MPF (MR ]) wHE o SRAE Rt # 2 B BLA
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds LM 2 EESHIEA - WAEERTE A d—
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of WAL ERENE B o IR mAR e #AA
the MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees are obliged to 1 &= B iR B XA BAT A wt 35T W Y H R AR
make contributions at the specified rate under the scheme. R o
The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to the W &5 R R B 2 R A R A
consolidated income statement represent contributions paid M SRR B E R AT D
and payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the Ao B AT T B4 2 A -

rules of the scheme.

149 Tomson Group Limited 35 i F 45 WA #]



36.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0 B R Mk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Continued)

The employees in the PRC are members of respective state-
managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at a certain
percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

schemes is to make the specified contributions.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following significant

transactions with related and connected parties:

a. A substantial sharcholder of Rivera (Holdings) Limited
(“RHL”) together with her close family members control
the Company and that person has significant influence
over RHL. Accordingly, RHL is considered as a related
party of the Company. In 2008, the Company had
entered into an agreement covering the period from 30th
June, 2008 up to 31st July, 2011, with RHL, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Company agreed to provide administrative services
and office premises to RHL and its subsidiaries, in return,
RHL is required to share an attributable portion of the
administrative cost of the Company, for a monthly fee of
HK$230,000. The Company and RHL entered into a
new agreement dated 28th July, 2011 with revised
administrative cost of HK$320,000 per month for the
period from 1st August, 2011 to 31st July, 2014. During
the year ended 31st December, 2012, the administrative
cost of the Company shared by RHL amounted to
HK$3,840,000 (2011: HK$3,210,000). As at 31st
December, 2012 and 31st December, 2011, no
outstanding balance was owed by RHL.

The above transaction also constitutes a connected
transaction but is exempted from disclosure and approval

requirements under the Listing Rules.

36.

37.

SRR AT )

Hh I {451 St e SR 88 A 2 I
HUAE LR RAR A FT B 2 BB o AR AR
BUBLAN - AR E T B39 AL & 2
T A0 AR H AR o A G2 [ B TRAR A
At # 2 A B AR AT B

I 208 77 e Il e N\ - 32 B

AR AR BB A T R B A DU
HRE

a.  ARNEHR N E A BRA ()
— 7 B R B A i %
YA EDIMEEN PN DN §i A
JUT WA B AR 8 7 2 B 5 o 8 —
FENF > RN AEARNF 2 L8
JBE SR BT S 2 A \AE N A
=tHE-F-—%tH=1+—H
ZHREE IR EH > ALHE R
B AT BUR B B B T K
B /N I DR = R - NN
H A FEAG AT BUE: A > & H 230,000
IG o AT KN T B A %
——4EEH A NHZ R EE
T BUCE AAEHT B8 H 320,000 # T
Ml oE—-—F N —HE_ZF
—WEEA=Z+t—HIE- HE_F
— A+ A=+ —HIEFEE N
W48 AN R 2 AT BB R
3,840,000 45 JT ( —F——4F : 3,210,000
BIT) c R H =+
Ak -F——F+_H=+—H"
JU AT S 48 KA AR 2 RAT: o] oA A 4 4
o

VA& 52 5 I S BR E2 5y o M
Gl T TR 2 4 B At e
RE o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

37. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

b.

During the year, two non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group made interest bearing advances to all of their
shareholders in proportion to their respective shareholding
interests, as mutually agreed by all shareholders to make
better use of the surplus cash of the above subsidiaries. The
advances to non-controlling shareholders with significant

influence over those subsidiaries are as follows:

37. BT BBHE ALY 41)

SRR S P E S ) P
AR AR 2MBORA AR
F¥9 S HE L 91 1 5 S A R AR
A7 B BG4 B R AR B E o DU
A SO0 A A D G B A
& o )% A5 W 2 A R
T3 9 IR FE A i 2 Bogan T

2012 2011

SEE E ok

HKS$’°000 HK$000

Tt Tt T

Advance to non-controlling shareholders — #Af IF #2 i i R 2 K IH 290,556 -
Repayment from a non-controlling — IR E R 2 B

shareholder (217,457) -

As at 31st December, 2012 W E— AR
+-H=+—H 73,099 -
Interest income FE A 9,076 -

The advances are unsecured and bear interest at 6.15%
and 7% per annum and the balance of HK$73,099,000
are repayable in 2015 and bear interest at 6.15% per

annum.

As at 31st December, 2012, included in the consolidated
financial statements under trade and other payables and
accruals, was an amount of HK$5,250,000 (2011:
HK$4,350,000) due to a non-controlling shareholder
with significant influence over a subsidiary of the
Company. The amount is unsecured, interest free and has

no fixed repayment terms.

1 5 1 Tomson Group Limited 35 i F 45 WA #]

RS BGK  FEEAIE DL AE R R 615
JE Ko 7 TS, - 8% %873,099,000 #5 IC
JH O — HAR R - I DLAE AR
6.15 HFE °

oA+ H=Z1—H > %
A BT HR R N By B A R A R
Je TR B TR L AT AR R
4 EUNGIE FER N2 DINE S
P B R 2 3T 5,250,000 W 00 ( %
——4F 1 4,350,000 90) ° #% & F S
SEHCI ~ Ho 5 B JHE ] 5 AR o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

37. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY 37. BTy B BN -8 By (41)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
d. Compensation of key management personnel d. WHRBEHARZME
The remuneration of Directors during the year was as HENZERHMAT -
follows:
2012 2011
- S TE
HK$°000 HK$000
T T
Short-term benefits AR A 20,698 20,233
Post-employment benefits IRIRAR A 56 48
20,754 20,281
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the HHEBM I ME R g EHE
remuneration committee or the Board (or under the (BARPEA A R R 2 320 > #1500
authorisation of the shareholders of the Company as the 1M 5E ) 27 5 Bl K7~ Al L
case may be) by reference to market terms, individual B B RIFM RS A -

responsibilities and performance.

The balances due from associates and a jointly controlled entity i F B AR SR R A R 2 R
at the end of the reporting period are set out in Notes 25 and B 2 70 9 O B 25 B2 26
26, respectively.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with il 57 G TR 5 A A (9] B A B N - Ty
terms mutually agreed between the Group and the respective ] B 2 R FOEAT

related parties.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged

to secure the Group’s borrowings of HK$4,277.79 million

(2011: HK$3,345.58 million):

38. WA Z

WA T S ER (2 e B st IS A 4 1S
BEBE 55 4,277,790,000 4 0T ( & — —4F
3,345,580,000 #& 7T ) VEHEHH -

2012 2011

—ER-TgE CF 5

HKS$’000 HK$000

T T T

Investment properties BEwE 5,801,791 5,297,457
Leasehold land and buildings A + Hh J pt 63,038 398,562
Properties under development R E 3,131,638 2,632,803
Properties held for sale W 586,866 477,176
Investments held for trading FERE 85,372 96,835
Bank deposits (Noze) AT (B 7E) 1,306,023 869,252
10,974,728 9,772,085

Note:

The bank deposits pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings carry interest rates which

range from 0.01% to 3.5% (2011: 0.01% to 3.5%) per annum. Deposits amounting to
HK$1,297,682,000 (2011: HK$814,628,000) have been pledged to secure short-term
bank borrowings and are therefore classified as current assets. The remaining deposits
amounting to HK$8,341,000 (2011: HK$54,624,000) have been pledged to secure long-

term bank borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current assets.

1 53 Tomson Group Limited 354 M4 A+

Bt

1 2 HE AT LA (R A 42 11 i 65 2 SRAT A7 3K > FLAR IR A
0.01JEZE 358 (& ——4F 1 0,01 JEFE3.5E) Z[H - &%
£51,297,682,000 #5 7C ( — % — —4F : 814,628,000 # 7 ) 2
AE AR VRS P S SRAT 1 88 Z IS4 > R U Bl 40 B0 T )
PR o A H Y 8,341,000 5 TC (L E ——4F 1 54,624,000 #5
I6) Z B AR HONAESECRR W ERA T B 2 340 > Rt 4y
BLIERBERE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&
39. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 39. AW Z W B R
COMPANY
The financial information of the Company as at 31st R ZAEF A= ARFEZ
December, 2012 is as follows: RS GBI
2012 2011
S
Notes HKS$’000 HK$ 000
Kt it T T
Non-Current Assets Ik R B A
Investments in subsidiaries [} 8 N m R 637,404 637,404
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WA o a5 2 ) R I 2,596,950 2,597,635
Available-for-sale investments At ERE 315 315
3,234,669 3,235,354
Current Assets TEE E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WA o g 2 ) R I 386,248 530,631
Other receivables and prepayments A JRE AR IE &fﬁhL A 7,996 24,278
Cash and bank balances fﬁﬂi&fﬁ T 4L 115,382 86,195
509,626 641,104
Current Liabilities B 1
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAST B & N F 35 TE 405,705 424,025
Other payables HCAth FREAST R K 3,546 3,503
409,251 427,528
Net Current Assets T Bl & R 100,375 213,576
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities  #8 & & I i B & (& 3,335,044 3,448,930
Capital and Reserves A B gk i
Share capital JieA 30 717,795 708,180
Share premium and reserves JBe Ay v A I At A 40 2,617,249 2,740,750
Equity attributable to shareholders of AN E) R E L RE S
the Company 3,335,044 3,448,930
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

40. COMPANY’S SHARE PREMIUM AND

40. A2y vi) JBe B e A0 B Ak i

RESERVES
Capital Share
Share redemption option Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
A Ji JB¢
i A i R fol ff Wl BARK  REER it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T#x T T#rx T#rn T#x
THE COMPANY A ]
Balance at Ist January, R =F——4F—H—H
2011 b it 2,092,899 15,690 34391 327,645 118546 2,589,171
Profit and total AF B ) S A T A
comprehensive income  4H%A
for the year - - - - 182,467 182,467
Exercise of share options Sy 17,167 - (4,672) - - 12,495
Share options lapsed B\ KAL 2 B ACHE - - (1,398) - 1,398 -
Issue of shares under S OWEE |
scrip dividend scheme  #{T/tf 40,457 N - - - 40,457
Dividend paid for 2010 JRfT = F—ZFERE (8,615) - - - (75,225 (83,840)
Balance at Ist January, R =F—4F—H—H
2012 2 &% 2,141,908 15,690 28,321 327,645 227,186 2,740,750
Loss and total G ZEVEL B
comprehensive expense A4
for the year - - - - (88,571) (88,571)
Repurchase of shares [n] B s A7y (2,870) 918 - - (918) (2,870)
Issue of shares under scrip HR4% DAt B 518
dividend scheme Eglidhs 24,521 - - - - 24,521
Dividend paid for 2011 JRAf ZZF——4ERE  (10,533) - - - (46,048)  (56,581)
Balance at /A QI Sl o Y |
31st December, 2012 =+—H 2 &ifk 2,153,026 16,608 28321 327,645 91,649 2,617,249
41. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 41. FEIEBERY)

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Group has
issued 21,066,227 new shares (2011: 17,230,311 new shares) as
scrip dividend of HK$35,054,000 for the year ended 31st
December, 2011 (HK$49,072,000 for the year ended 31st
December, 2010) as set out in Notes 15 and 30.

1 5 5 Tomson Group Limited 354 M4 A+

B —FE -+ = —HILF
B ARSI E BT 21,066,227 OB (%
——4F 117,230,311 B AR E =%
—— 4+ A=+ —HILEEZRE
35,054,000 0 (B £ ~F—FF+ A
= —H L FE % 49,072,000 #500) (7R
B 5E15 22 30) »
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

42. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28th January, 2013, two Company’s wholly owned
subsidiaries, Shanghai Tomson Real Estate Investment &
Development Co., Led. (“Tomson Real Estate”) and Tomson
Golf (Shanghai) Limited entered into the framework agreement
with Shanghai Pudong Land Holding (Group) Co. Ltd.
(“SPLH”) mainly (i) for the acquisition by Tomson Real Estate
of the land use rights of the Sports Portion and the
Development Project at the Additional Portion from SPLH at
the consideration of RMB 250 million and RMB 848.16
million respectively and (ii) to amend certain terms of the
signed 2nd Supplemental Agreement dated 10th September,
2010 relating to the delivery of vacant possession and title
registration of certain land lots located in the north portion
within Area B-2 and Area B-13-4 at Jinqiao-Zhangjiang,
Pudong, Shanghai, the PRC (the “Northern Portion”).

Sports Portion is located within the Northern Portion with a

site area of 422,174.6 square meters.

The Development Project at the Additional Portion is a
residential development project at the Northern Portion with a
site area of 28,286.2 square meters currently held by SPLH,
which comprises the land use rights and the construction works
to be completed at a stage which fulfills the legal requirement

for the transfer of construction in progress.

An announcement dated 28th January, 2013 in respect of the
framework agreement was made by the Company accordingly.
Details of the transaction were disclosed in the circular to
shareholders dated 21st February, 2013.

Up to the date of this report, deposits of RMB433.79 million
was paid for the land use rights, in accordance with the terms of
the framework agreement. The deposit paid will be classified

under “Deposits paid for land use rights” under current assets.

42. Wh B POH

WoE—=ZF—AFNAH > KAAFWE
A I N W 5 B b B A BR A
Al ([ EEHE ) KGR &SR (Lig) A
B 2 ) B A 3 R R A (S ) AR
A (T8 ) ST rCHEZE I k) » EZAHBE ()
H ¥ B b ) b PR TS R Y
b A FRE B TR R gt e IE E | > RUE
43 Bl Ay N R 250,000,000 7 & AR
848,160,000 JC & (i) & #T it —F — T 4F JU
A+ B ZRT R A0 78 Wb k) A B AL
AFE B VR AR — R VLM [ B2
Je B—13—4 Hb 35 A (4 A6 M 35 ([ s 3 1) A
T HORAC AT BERE SR n A TR -

[H8 5 M | A7 5 b M B A - s B T A
422,174.6F 7K -

[0 R g e TR | & — T AL AL b B
MIAE T BE FRIE H > B RS £ 28,286.2 T
Tk HATH LR o 5Z20H B A i
i FARE B T S8 MU R 2R TR > HZHSE AR
BIFE Y EAE R T AR > 2 BB -

AN FCAEREM WA —F— =4 —H
— WNEECYIQ S T Ira/A i T
HRHFETRRA NS - —-=4"H
b B R A P

BWEAHRE Y > AR 433,790,000 L2
4 4 EARPECHEZR 3 ) 2 ARk S A 1 b
I - EAHES B A RE EEE T
Z [T R EATRT 4] -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 43. TEWEAE -BBRAGAESE
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES o
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2012 N _R——AET-H=1—H
ZEEB A
Proportion of
Paidup issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary ~effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activities
BRUBT AXVRHECED
Al Rl LA/ IR /i A
WV 2 i) 44 e RS2 B BEHE 3 bR FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
ik fi]
% %
Charlesville Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 - Investment holding
£y Jagids 100 £ T REHR
Cosmos Success Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
I 5 3 o A R ) it 10,000 % 7 REHR
Farskill Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
g R AR AT i 2870 BE
Future Tech Production House Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 90  Investment holding
MR A R A ) it 10,000 7C REHR
Garland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
RARA R it 10,000 % 7 REHR
Grand Lion Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
TR A RAF i 2870 BE
Grand View Property Management PRC US5$500,000 - 100 Property management
(Shanghai) Co., Lid. (Note (1))
REEE R (L) ARAT il 500,000 % 7T ES £
(W3t (1)
Humphreys Estate Hong Kong HK$200 - 100 Securities trading
(Strawberry Houses) Limited il 200370 HHHE
Ideal Movement Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Property holding
BRFARAF ik 2870 WERE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)

43, TEWBAYE - BEAGESE
2% )

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2012 RN ——4ET-H=1—H

(Continued) ZLEW B A ()
Proportion of
Paidup issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary  effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activities
BRUBT  AAVRECEN
A Rk & LA/ I A /i A
IV 2 i) 24 REWH FRUNSEN i R FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
ik il %
% %
Island Sky Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Inactive
BREARAH Eik BT WEH
Jentime Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Inactive
RIARA Eik 2870 WEH
Kuto Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
[l A PR il Eik 2870 BeE
Leway Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Inactive
HEARAH il 2870 WEH
Maxi Charm Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Py eids 1£70 BE
MHK Limited British Virgin Islands US$30,000 - 70 Property development
R L 30,000 % C ER i
Model Year Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
A& R/ Eik 2870 BE
Multiclassic Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands 1US5$40,200,000 - 100 Investment holding
R L 40,200,000 7t REHR
Owina Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
BAKARAT Eik 2870 BE

Annual Report 2012 B4R | 58



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 43, FERBAY -BEAAREE

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2012

2% )

)/ G St S Y £ o

(Continued) ZEERBA A (#)
Proportion of
Paidup issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital  held by the Company ~ Principal activities
MRCRT  ARWHECHT
ik 1L K LR RA BEA /GE M A
W18 2 ) 2 A Ak A ERERLR FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
Hi% &
% %
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu PRC US$18,500,000 - 95 Property development
Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (Note (2))
R O R i 18,500,000 5 7T ESHE
HIRAF (K7 2)
Shanghai Tomson Outer Gaogiao PRC US$15,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
HEHESNEEREARA i 15,000,000 % & ES
(Wit (1)
Shanghai Tomson Plastic Industry PRC US$9,580,000 - 58 Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. (Note (2)) PVC pipes
EiGEEBERARAF i 9,580,000 3% 7T REBE
(Wit 2)
Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real Estate ~ PRC US5$46,000,000 - 70 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Noze (2))
EEGEEREREREARAT  E 46,000,000 3 ¢ ESH
(Wit )
Shanghai Tomson Real Estate PRC US$100,000,000 - 100 Property development
Investment & Development
Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
G A A A Gl 100,000,000 % ¢ ESH

(i)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)

43, TEWBAYE - BEAGESE
2% )

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2012 RN ——4ET-H=1—H

(Continued) ZLEW B A ()
Proportion of
Paidup issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activities
MRCEST  ARAGHCET
a3 K WEmRA A/ GEMEA
P 2% ) 4 B ak it # A ] Fbk FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
H# fil %
% %
Tianjin Jinwan Real Estate Development ~ PRC RMB2,442,500,000 - 75 Property development
Co., Limited (Note (3))
R REREEEHRAA (Wi G) T ARH2,442,500,000 1T ES T
Tianjin Tomson Development PRC RMB1,500,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co., Limited (Note (1))
KiEp RS AR (1) AR 1,500,000,000 70 T
Toben Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment
WHAHRAR i 27 e e
Tomson (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
ik (R A IR ) i 2T BB
Tomson Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
REELBES 157 TR
Tomson Empire View Co. Limited British Virgin Islands U85$65,010,000 - 100 Investment holding
G RERARAA G ey 65,010,000 %7 T
Tomson Financial Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
G EA R &k 10,000 7T T
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 43. TERBAE - BEAGLGE

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 2 (41)

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2012 RN ——4ET-H=1—H

(Continued) ZEERBA A (#)

Proportion of
Paidup issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary  effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activities
MRCRT  ARWHECHT
k1L K LER A A& /G E A
I 24 ] 4% A Ak g A EREGLR ERE 3
Directly  Indirectly
H% [F3
% %
Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited PRC US$40,000,000 - 100 Golf course and club
(Note (1)) operation, and property
development

BEFER (L) ARAH Gl 40,000,000 3% ¢ RRARRS K& AT

(W7t (1) DYLIES 4

Tomson Group Garland (Shanghai) PRC US5$16,000,000 - 100 Property development

Housing & Estate Led. (Noze (1))
GEEEEL (L) FREFRAT hE 16,000,000 7T UE S
(Wit (1)

Tomson Group (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$20 - 100 Providing nominee services
to the Group and
investment holding

ViR (RIA) A RA ik 207 B SE BR AR A MRS
BB

Tomson Group (Nominees) No. 2 Hong Kong HK$20 - 100 Providing nominee

Limited services to the Group
Pk e (R B IR A ] B 20T LS v IN 8
Tomson Haijing Garden (Shanghai PRC 1U5$58,200,000 - 100 Property development
Pudong New Area) Co., Lid.
(Note (1))
VRS IE R (LB R 5 il 58,200,000 % ¢ ESHE
BT (HFE (1)

1 6 1 Tomson Group Limited 354 M4 A+



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0 B R Mk

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 43, FERBAY -BEAAREE

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 3% )
(Continued)
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2012 RN ——4ET-H=1—H
(Continued) ZLEW B A ()
Proportion of
Paidup issued share capital/
Place of issued ordinary  effective interest in
incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activities
BRUBT  AAVRECEN
A Rk & LA/ I A /i A
IV 2 i) 24 REWH FRUNSEN i R FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
ik fil
% %
Tomson International Entertainment Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding and
Company Limited investment in concert
business
P b B PR I 4 R A it 2870 BB B B e
Tomson International Entertainment Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Film distribution
Distribution Limited
P b [ PR AR A B T A TR Eik BT % BT
Tomson International Trade Building PRC US5$16,800,000 - 100 Property development
(Shanghai) Co., Led. (Note (1))
GERERE (L) ARAR e 16,800,000 % 7¢ ES3
(Wit (1)
Tomson Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$3 100 - Investment holding
GEREHRAR i 3T BE LR
TPR Secretarial Services Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Providing secretarial services
and investment holding
ik 10,000 % 76 TRAtRRE s A BB R
Walsland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
#7 BHRAT Hi 10,000 % 7 REHR
Yamako Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
FRSCH R/ ) Eik 2870 BeE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2012

(Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

Note:  For those subsidiaries established in the PRC, their classification of establishment

is as follows:

(1) wholly foreign owned enterprise
?2) sino-foreign equity joint venture
3) equity joint venture

Principal associates as at 31st December, 2012

43, TEWBAYE - BEAGAESE
2% )

)/ G St S Y £ o
ZEEWB A (41)

5 BT > YA AR5 HECAF IR AT AT R (] A 4
A0 v R B 2 P A O o

BT < 0 T R RS A B A R LR MU

1) A EE A
@  AEERE
B AEME

/g St S gy ;RN
ZEEBE A

Proportion of
Paidup issued share capital/
Form of Place of issued ordinary  effective interest in
business incorporation share capital/  registered capital held
Name of associate structure and operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
MRCHT  AAFAWNHCHT
sk B3 e TEBRA Bk GEMEA
Wi 2 vl EBHWEA  HRNE ik it A ] FlR FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
H#% fil %
% %
Roma Era Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$45,000 - 267 Investment holding
ERHRAH s AL i 45,000 7T Eig<eEtie
Yankie Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 - 50 Investment holding
BAARAH i M AL i 2T HEER
China Boom Enterprises Incorporated British Virgin Islands US$1,280,000 - 44 Tnvestment holding
Limited
BEdRARA R L KRB LR 1,280,000 % ideidh
Tomson Entertainment Incorporated Taiwan NTD25,000,000 - 45 Investment in film,
Co. Limited television and
entertainment
businesses
D RERMARAR  FERAL BiE 25,000,000 &2 RERY - WK
B4
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 # & —F— "4+ A =+—H L&

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 43. TEWBAA - BRAFLGRE
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES ¥ )
(Continued)
Principal associates as at 31st December, 2012 R _F -4+ -H=+—H
(Continued) ZEEBE AN ()
Proportion of
Paidup issued share capital/
Form of Place of issued ordinary  effective interest in
business incorporation share capital/  registered capital held
Name of associate structure and operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
MROEST  ARAFHCET
ik b3 e WEmRA A/ GEMEA
Wit o vl e E ak it # A ] FbE FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
H# fi B
% %
Abundance Tomson Incorporated Hong Kong HKS$2 - 50 Investment holding
Management Limited
SEGREEAARAA  GERGE itk 25 BOEEER
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the AR T B I B A E R A
particulars of all subsidiaries and associates would be of Al 2 EORHE R SUR IR R U R > B RAE
excessive length and therefore the above list contains only the B 5% 2 S A AR I S A O A Y
particulars of those subsidiaries and associates which B2 WOHIEG 2N W) B A W) L R o

significantly affect the results or assets of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W5 W Wik

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BE - EFE—-—"Ft+ " H=+—HILEFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

43. FEWBEBAE - BREAALRGRE

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES ¥ )
(Continued)
Jointly controlled entities as at 31st December, 2012 R R4 H=1—H
ZHBMEE
Percentage of
Form of Place of effective interest in
Name of jointly business incorporation Paid up registered capital
controlled entity structure and operation registered capital  held by the Company ~ Principal activities
ik A3 K R R A A
aEEEANR RUHEMER KRN BULTEME A HRHERILR FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
H#% fi B
% %
Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Sino-foreign equity  PRC US5$24,340,000 - 50 Hotel owning and
Hotel Co., Ltd. joint venture operation
IRl MR N POARERE  PE 24,340,000 % 7T R R R
ARAT
Tianjin Jinwan Property Equity joint venture  PRC RMB1,406,385,800 - 51  Property development
Co., Limited
KEHEERARAR  ABESX I ARH B
1,406,385,800 7
44. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 44. WYY

The comparative figures of deferred tax assets, prepaid income
tax, tax payables and deferred tax liabilities have been
reclassified to conform to current year’s presentation. The
balance of deferred tax assets, prepaid income tax, tax payables
and deferred tax liabilities as at 31st December, 2011 have been
increased by HK$219,509,000, decreased by HK$497,247,000,
increased by HK$138,413,000 and decreased by HK$416,151,000
respectively. The reclassification has had no material impact to
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 1st
January, 2011. Accordingly, the consolidated statement of

financial position as at 1st January, 2011 was not presented.

1 65 Tomson Group Limited 35 i F 45 WA #]

RAERE T A~ AT TSR MEAS BT K
RAEBIE A > S EH OB E AT SE
R U e I S I B B
0% SIE o T 7E 191 219,509,000 95 IC ~ TEAT
FFAS B8 8 7V 497,247,000 5 5T ~ MEA i JE 434
JI1138,413,000 ¥ 7T % 4% %iE B IH £ 5 ¥l D
416,151,000 ¥ 70 » B B T ——14F
—H— B 24 MHHIR LRI G A =K
2, HIRAZN —F——F—H—H

BB MBI DL -



Other Connected Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, current accounts have been
maintained between companies in the Group. At the end of the
reporting period, the particulars and the aggregate balances of the
current accounts due (to) by the following non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company to the remaining members of the Group

were as follows:

JU A B 252 5

£ H W EBRAR > AH B %24 A W R s A 1
AR o RECE IR ARG EH AR A 2 R (8
1) HEWCR SUA A R 2 JF 4 E W A 7] 2 AR 2R
HRIH 2 REAG M &S BR AR T

Percentage
shareholdings
attributable
to the Group
Name of subsidiary A A 1 R A 2012 2011
Fi 5§ 2> W] 44 1 BEEHRIE 228 X ——4F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T#T
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 95% - (210)
i BT L B R PR A
Shanghai Tomson Plastic Industry Co., Ltd. 58% 37 37
b B A PR A A
Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 70% - (835,481)
I YR R i B A PR R
Tianjin Jinwan Real Estate Development Co., Limited 75% (219,304) -
R 7 i s A PR A A
MHK Limited 70% 17,250 15,150

These current accounts are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
repayment terms except the amount of HK$219,298,000 due to
Tianjin Jinwan Real Estate Development Co., Limited which is
interest bearing at 6.15% per annum and repayable in 2015 (2011:
HK$719,316,000 due to Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd. which is interest bearing at 7% per annum).

Details of the connected transactions are set out in Note 37 to these

consolidated financial statements.

EHARARE Ty BT - B [ E R K
B M B AT ORI S A A R A R R A
219,298,000 #5 JCBR A1 » 5% ZEEKIE L AF | F6.15
JEFEHEM S T — AR (CF— 4« B
£ b v % B R 5 b BR B A PR A W 3KH
719,316,000 ¥ IG > FAFEF| R 7 HFHE) ©

BRI 52 B W RO AR B3 A S R B 3 37
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Schedule of Principal Properties
Ty ER

As at 31st December, 2012 A —F— 44+ _"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AEEFEZ2YE
Investment Properties HREWE
Approximate
Term of Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HE A A i i PN
it Bk H (EHKk) & s
The whole of basement level 1, Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 15,655 for offices Commercial 100%
part of the level 1 and the Lujiazui and podium;
whole of level 3 to 5 of the Finance and 7,594 for car parks
commercial podium and Trade Zone
141 car parking spaces of
Tomson Commercial Building,
710 Dongfang Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e \ R AL 6 SRR PEAX W2 i EZ YT [LES 100%
PE 2K W Pl 52 27 o 07 36 710 5% B 15,655 F K 5
Vi B | B2 K 2-2-1 B JHH(7 7,594 F K
EEra: Y E RS kS
K141 fEaHE
The whole of level 1 to 3 of the Lot C3-001 Medium term 36,082 for offices Commercial 100%
commercial podium, Waigaogiao Free and podium;
4/F., 8/F. w0 12/F,, 14/F,, Trade Zone 4,299 for car parks
17/F. t0 25/F. and part of
7[F. and 12A/F. of the
office tower and
105 car parking spaces of
Tomson International Trade Building,
No.1 Jilong Road,
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
ik YN | 2 g b r i IRBL R i EE2 YT EEd 100%
B e TR (A e B 1 5% C3-001 Bt 36,082°F I K ;
GRS KBRS 15328 JHEL(T 4,299 F 7 K

BOA KM 4R sE 128 1488
1702 25 2 I 7 i 1A 3y
T 105 IR EAE

1 67 Tomson Group Limited 354 M4 A+



Schedule of Principal Properties
EEPER

As at 31st December, 2012 A ~F— 44+ _"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) ANEEFEZ2YE &)
Investment Properties (Continued) BE&E )
Approximate
Term of Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HEAY A i AEH
it 1 B 4 9% H (FTKk) ik ZHE
Whole of level 1 to 4 of Lot 1/1, 244 Street, Medium term 11,903 for offices Commercial 95%
the commercial podium and Zhangjiabangjiedao, and podium;
136 car parking spaces of Lujiazui Finance 5,054 for car parks
Tomson Business Centre, and Trade Zone
158, 188, 228 Zhangyang Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e \ R AL 8 T BxEEHELE T CES YT [LES 95%
PR R 5 RAEHE > 11,903 F 7K ;
SR 158 - 188~ 228%F 24T 11 AHAL 5,054 T Ik
L L YN N
FIE4ERER136MAH
Tower B, Tomson Riviera, Lot No.1 Long term 35,423 Residential 100%
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, 17 Jiefang,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, Meiyuan Road
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e \ R e T H 3% 17 37 &H 35,423 fie 100%
P EL -1 158 B
feE 1% 28 5%
Bk — B H
Tomson Waigaogiao Industrial Park, Lot 1/1 & 1/4, Medium term 109,359 Industrial 100%
No. 381, 383, 1 Futexi Road, 19 Jiefang,
27 & 29 Huashen Road, Waigaogiao
358 Futebei Road, Free Trade Zone
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e A RN 8 R [ e IR BL R i 109,359 T% 100%
O e DR I 5 P 3 1 198 11
381 B 383 9% ~ HABE 27 2998 R1/4k

EHAH 3585
GEAEE LERRE
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Schedule of Principal Properties

HRYER

As at 31st December, 2012 A —F— 44+ _"H=+—H
PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) AEEFFEEZ2WE )
Investment Properties (Continued) BE&E )
Approximate
Term of Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
B 2 0 i i AEH
Gal H B A AL (FHXK) ik Z
72/F., Shanghai World Financial Lot 1, Medium 3,222 Commercial 100%
Centre, No. 100, Century Avenue, 20 Jiefang, term
Pudong, Shanghai, Meiyuan
People’s Republic of China Xincun Jiedao,
Pudong New Area
i N RILAIE A il 320 [EES 100%
LR R EE
ALK E 100 9% 20451
FERAR A RO
728
Golf Course [N PR3
Approximate
Term of Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
2 v i A% H
it ik (FJK) ik Z s
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club Medium term Club houses, driving An 18-hole 100%
No.1 Long Dong Avenue, range and golf course
Pudong New Area, maintenance room of
Shanghai, 12,652 with site area
People’s Republic of China 0f 952,154
thE \ RN i BT W RISCE5 R 18T F R 100%
R R D R SR 1 9 W B 12,652 F ok w5
Wik R A KR R
952,154 F I K
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Schedule of Principal Properties
EEPER

As at 31st December, 2012 A ~F— 44+ _"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) AAEBEFFEZ2WE )
Properties under development BB R2ZYXE
Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
Site Area Floor Area Group’s  Stage of Date of
Description Lot Number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use Interest  Completion Completion
B
W ATERT AR ALEH fliitz
G Ho B4 % CFR) (PR ik ZHEs ERRPEB 561 H 3
A piece of land at the Lot 7-2, 23,924 294,900 Residential 75%  Construction of the ~ Mid 2015
junction of Heping District, and substructure
Jiefang North Road and Tianjin commercial commenced
Chifeng Road,
Heping District,
Tianjin,

People’s Republic of China
DA YN KB R 23,924 294,900 =i 75% HEZHETE  —F-LfEd

REMTERRIER 729 0B C IR
RIS T
2t
A piece of land at No. 22356 2,569 22,842 Luxury 70%  Construction of the ~ End of 2013
Travessa do Colégio folio 100, residential superstructure
No.7 e Calcada do Book B16K commenced in
Bom Parto July 2012
No.2, Macao Special
Administrative Region
of the People’s Republic
of China
fir 2 R ALY GRUE b 2,569 22,842 FERE 70% FEZEETIR  ZF-SFK
TR 7 B B 22356 ERZF-C4F
7 % BOR AR R 25 H100E L AR
Z—hti BF 16K it
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Schedule of Principal Properties
HRYER

As at 31st December, 2012 A —F— 44+ _"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) AEEFEZ2WE )
Properties under development (Continued) Bl R2YE &)
Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
Site Area Floor Area Group’s  Stage of Date of
Description Lot Number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use Interest  Completion Completion
&
WRATERT A K%M fliitz
Gal Ho B4 % CEHR)  CFIR) ik ZHEg SRR R 561 H
A piece of land near the B-2 and 248,200 176,000 Residential 100%  The land will be Phase I & I1
junction of Lou Shan Road ~ B-13-4 developed in phases. - end of
and Long Dong Avenue, Jingiao— Construction work 2014
Jingiao-Zhangjiang District, ~ Zhangjiang for Phase [ & 11
Pudong New Area, District will be commenced
Shanghai, in mid-2013
People’s Republic of China
PREARMAE LEER 2 - RILE 248200 176,000 ftE 100% RSN R H-ME
Hleh — RILE B-2 bl )% BT o ] M-
HE RN GERKE  B-134HR B ZR—NEE
TRz —HEH BETRK
REF—=
EdRgT
A piece of land between AlI-10-1 18,818 9,400 Residential 70%  Construction work  End of 2014
Luoshan Road and Jingiao- will be commenced
Sanba River, Zhangjiang in mid-2013
Pudong New Area, District
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
i 2 A RS s - 18,818 9,400 i%a 70% BFETREM “F MR
BRG] TRILIER S
Y SN AL-10-1 R FEHET

2Rzt
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Schedule of Principal Properties
EEPER

As at 31st December, 2012 A ~F— 44+ _"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) AEBEFRFEZ2WE )
Properties held for sale R E'S
Approximate
Term of Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
B 2 v v ARG
it Ho B 4 5% H (PR & ZHE i
Part of 6/F. to 7/F., 10/F., Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 3,039 Commercial 100%
11/, 17/F. of Lujiazui Finance
Tomson Commercial Building, and Trade Zone
710 Dongfang Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
GEINE N ERERRE S R ik 3,039 [ 100%
e oK e [ R B 710 9% 22-15B
GEEMAREETH -
104~ 1R 1720
Part of 5/F., 6/F., 15/F., and 16/F. of Lot C3-001 Medium term 4,035 Commercial 100%
Tomson International Trade Building, Waigaogiao Free
No.1 Jilong Road, Trade Zone
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
GEINE N B PR R i 4,035 EES 100%
B e AR R I A e % 1 9% C3-001 B
IECTS:UIN: $1: 3N
ISHR 1682 i
Part of Towers A & C & Tower D, Lot No.1 Long-term 48,317 Residential 100%
Tomson Riviera, 17 Jiefang,
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, Meiyuan Road
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
GEINE N A il =W 48,317 i 100%
PEXE R RE 5 I 177657 1 5B
e[ £ 5% 28

Vb —dh AR CHZ BRI LA B DB
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Schedule of Principal Properties
HRYER

As at 31st December, 2012 A —F— 44+ _"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) AEBEFRFEZ2WE )
Properties held for sale (Continued) % )
Approximate
Term of Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
2 v i N
it B4 % AL (FHXK) M b4 1
Phases VI, VIIT & IX Lot 23/10 Long-term 1,741 Residential 100%
Tomson Golf Villas, Tong Le Cun,
1 Long Dong Avenue, Hua Mu Xiang
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
i\ RN B i R A% = 1,741 % 100%
REAORAE 1 5t B A B If] 444 23/10 I
N BARE LM
Part of Tomson Riviera Garden, Lot 3, 15 Jiefang, Long-term 2,042 Residential 70%
Lane 2255, Luoshan Road, Huamu Zhen,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
N RN i R i A = 2,042 % 70%
BB 2055 F i W RE (L B 2 A fEAR#E15H3
Part of Block B & F and Lot 47/1, Long-term 470 for residential; Residential 100%
167 car parking spaces of Zhangbang Cun 5,205 for car parks
Tomson Golf Garden, Jingiaozhen,
1 Long Dong Avenue, Pudong New Area
(2 of North District),
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
i A RSEAIE bl T A =2 fEE470 Ik i 100%
AR 198 (L2 0R) SREREHN WHL{ 5,205
VT PR A )8 va 1/ R 47N FIhik
DL 167 AR LA
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Schedule of Principal Properties
EEPER

As at 31st December, 2012 A ~F— 44+ _"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY JOINTLY CONTROLLED #EBAeXERFRAGZYE
ENTITIES

Properties held for investment BletE22 X
Approximate
Term of Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
2 4 i AEH
it o B4 % AL (FHK) M b4 1
InterContinental Lot 12 Zhangyang Medium term 52,622 Hortel 50%
Shanghai Pudong hotel, Road Commercial
777 Zhangyang Road, District
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
GE N AR Ak Gk 52,622 Tk 50%
bk R < L R bl 777 TR 12 550 B

ST I M PR

Properties held for development sl Al ES
Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
Site Area Floor Area Group’s  Stage of Date of
Description Lot Number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use Interest ~ Completion Completion
k)
MO AATRE A TR AEH fhitz
it Ho B4 5% CEHR)  CFIR) ik ZHEd SRR 561 H 3
A piece of land at junction of Lot 48 & Lot 48-1 13,246 209,500 Commercial 51%  Construction works 2016
Jiefang North Road Heping District will be commenced
and Chifeng Road, Tianjin in 2nd quarter of
Heping District, 2013
Tianjin,
People’s Republic of China
TN INEE o1 KB 13,246 209,500 [EES S1  EETRMR “E-NE
REMFEMEMIEE  F485EhB i S
TEEL BN T 48-1 9 B F_EET
—Ig 4
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Five-Year Financial Summary

oA S5 ot

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT AN
Year Ended 31st December
BE+-H=+—HILEE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“EENE CEENE FE-RF - ZF -
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$’000
Ttk oo it oo T TiBT T
Gross proceeds from operations K0 AR 2,386,932 703,475 3,718,737 2,020,048 804,201
Profit before taxation B8 1 s ) 1,105,368 3,190,846 2,410,113 717,552 116,544
Taxation BiIH (484,369)  (1,798,059)  (1,435,583)  (638,137)  (108,080)
Profit for the year 4 1 1 A1 620,999 1,392,787 974,530 79,415 8,464
Attributable to: FELET
Owners of the Company E/NgSIL SRS RN 451,986 1,387,406 860,018 15,210 17,054
Non-controlling interests IR R Jh R M A 169,013 5,381 114,512 64,205 (8,590)
620,999 1,392,787 974,530 79,415 8,464
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF AWM BRI
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31st December
R+=H=+—H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
ZEENE ZFRENE ZFFE R R
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TFi#or Ti#oc Fitor Ti#oc T
Fixed assets [ 7 B 6,498,921 5925124 6216950 6,921,343 7,086,909
Lease premium for land + 3 A B 2 82,080 249,420 72,489 69,642 63,899
Film distribution rights R - - - 5,741 2,166
Prepayment for film distribution rights O BT RETE A - - - 6,488 9,555
Goodwill Gk 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets TRIERITAE & 82,049 89,522 183,285 223,035 238,586
Interests in associates and jointly NS N B A
controlled entities 2R 234,311 192,016 1,057,456 1,097,151 1,101,802
Other receivable Ho A R IE - - - - 73,099
Available-for-sale investments R 97,860 132,632 137,745 107,320 118,570
Pledged bank deposits RAMRATIE - - 47,583 54,624 8,341
Net current assets LE G 2321111 4,730,953 7,281,282 7,067,871 7,263,308
9,349,620 11,352,955 15,030,078 15,586,503 15,999,523
Equity attributable to owners of ANFREREE A
the Company T A e 4 7,853,606 9,265,792 10,426,438 10,843,605 10,865,187
Non-controlling interests R IR B R HE A 339,306 344,539 1,050,674 1,068,517 869,209
Total equity MR 8,192,912 9,610,331 11,477,112 11,912,122 11,734,396
Borrowings P 192,809 319,209 1,923,349 2,221,789 2,619,941
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAAE 963,899 1,423,415 1,629,617 1,452,592 1,645,186
9,349,620 11,352,955 15,030,078 15,586,503 15,999,523
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